Motion

Information

Motion

Motion

Motion

Motion

Motion

Directors
Manny Fernandez

Tom Handley
Pat Kite
BOARD MEETING AGENDA Anjali Lathi
Monday, November 25, 2013 Jennifer Toy
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. Officers

Richard B. Currie
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’'Hara
Attorney

Call to Order.

Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Minutes of the November 11, 2013 Regular Board Meeting.
Motion approving the Minutes of November 11, 2013 as submitted.

Written Communications.

Oral Communications.

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible,
written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working
day prior to the meeting). This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address and ask
questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda. If the
subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.
Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
a. District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures

b. Collection Services Process Scorecard

c. General Manager’s Monthly Operations & Investment Report

Approving a Motion to Cancel the Board of Directors Meeting of
December 23, 2013.

Accepting Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(to be reviewed by the Audit Committee).

10.

Board of Directors Compensation for 2014 (to be reviewed by the Personnel
Committee).

11.

Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with the
Covello Group for Providing Construction Management Services for the
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project (Pipkin) (to be reviewed by
the Construction Committee).

12.

Resolution No. 2720, Accepting the Construction of the Headworks
Improvements Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction,
Inc. and Authorizing the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of
Completion (Pipkin) (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).
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Motion 13.

Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task
Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability
Assessment (Pipkin) (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).

INFORMATION ITEMS

14.

Upcoming Workshops Calendar

15.

EBDA Commission Report

16.

Check Register.

17.

Holiday Pollution Prevention Message

18.

Committee Meeting Reports (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):
Personnel, Tuesday, November 19, 2013 at 1:00 p.m.

Construction, Wednesday, November 20, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.

Budget & Finance, Thursday, November 21, 2013 at 4:30 p.m.

Audit, Friday, November 22, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.

A NANE NN

19.

General Manager’s Report (information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

20.

Other Business:

v’ Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District
business and are welcome to request information from staff.

v Scheduling matters for future consideration.

21.

Adjournment - 7he Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Monday,
December 9, 2013 in the Boardroom at 7:00 p.m.

The Public is welcome to provide oral comments at Regular and Special Board meetings. Whenever possible, we request that
written statements be provided to the District at least one working day prior to the meeting. If the subject relates to an agenda
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction
but not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is scheduled. Oral Communications is
limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject. Speaker’s cards are available in the
Boardroom and should be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item and handed to the Clerk. The facilities at the District
Offices are wheelchair accessible. Any attendee requiring other special accommodations at the meeting should contact the
General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least one working day ahead of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND.
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NOTICE OF
COMMITTEE MEETING

All meetings will be held in the
General Manager’s Office

BOARD MEETING

5072 Benson Road November 25, 2013

Union City, CA 94587
(510) 477-7500

Committee Membership:

Budget and Finance Directors Jennifer Toy and Pat Kite (Alt. - Anjali Lathi)
Construction Committee  Directors Tom Handley and Manny Fernandez (Alt. — Pat Kite)
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. — Manny Fernandez)
Legislative Committee Directors Pat Kite and Anjali Lathi (Alt. — Tom Handley)
Personnel Committee Directors Jennifer Toy and Manny Fernandez (Alt. — Anjali Lathi)
Audit Committee Directors Jennifer Toy and Tom Handley

Personnel, Tuesday, November 19, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.
10. Board of Directors Compensation for 2014

Construction, Wednesday, November 20, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.

11.  Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with the Covello Group
for Providing Construction Management Services for the Thickener Control Building
Improvements Project (Pipkin)

12. Resolution No. 2720, Accepting the Construction of the Headworks Improvements
Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. and Authorizing the
Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of Completion (Pipkin)

13.  Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with
Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability Assessment (Pipkin)

Budget & Finance, Thursday, November 21, 2013 at 4:30 p.m.
7. Monthly Operations Report
a. District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures
b. Collection Services Process Scorecard
c. General Manager’s Monthly Operations & Investment Report

Audit, Friday, November 22, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.
9. Accepting Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors .
(Gov. Code Section 11123)
Committee Meeting are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOVEMBER 11, 2013

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Lathi called the Board to Order at 7:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, Vice President
Tom Handley, Director
Pat Kite, Director
Anjali Lathi, President
Jennifer Toy, Secretary

ABSENT:  None

STAFF: Rich Currie, General Manager
Rich Cortes, Manager, Business Services
Sol Cooper, Mechanic
Michael Dunning, Coach, Environmental Compliance
Jesse Gill, Manager, Technical Support & Customer Service
Sami Ghossain, Manager, Technical Services
Dave Livingston, Manager, Treatment & Disposal Services
Ed McCormick, Deputy General Manager
Andy Morrison, Manager, Collection Services
David O’Hara, Legal Counsel
Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
Robert Simonich, Manager, Fabrication, Maintenance & Construction
Tom Graves, Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary

CONSULTANTS: Grace Chow, Vice President, Brown and Caldwell

VISITORS: None
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November 11, 2013
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Action

Information 7.

Information 8.
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APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 28, 2013

On a motion made by Director Fernandez and seconded by Director
Handley, the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of October 28,
2013 were approved. The motion carried unanimously.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no official written communications.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

FIRST QUARTERLY REPORT ON CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM FOR FY 14

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager, said that in June, 2013, the
Board approved the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for FY‘14
in the amount of $17.5 million for the design and construction of 24
projects. The total CIP expenditure up to September 30, 2013 was above
the projections for the first quarter by approximately $480,000, mostly due
to 3 large projects being ahead of schedule. In addition, fourteen other
smaller projects will be either in design or in construction during FY*‘14.

STATUS OF PRIORITY 1 CIP PROJECTS

Technical Services Manager Sami Ghossain reported that in June, 2013,
the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program budget for FY 14 in
the amount of $17.5 million for the design and construction of 24 projects.
These 24 projects are further ranked as Priority 1 and 2 projects based on
criteria prepared by staff and approved by the Executive Team. For FY 14,
eleven projects are ranked as Priority 1 projects and the remaining
thirteen projects are ranked as Priority 2 projects.

In response to a question by the GM, the Board indicated they would like
to continue receiving this report.



Action
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AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TASK ORDER NO. 1 WITH BROWN &
CALDWELL FOR PROVIDING ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 1-680 AT SABERCAT ROAD
SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT

Technical Services Manager Sami Ghossain stated that on May 13, 2013,
the General Manager executed Task Order No. 1 with Brown & Caldwell in
the amount of $168,186 to provide construction management services for
the 1-680 at Sabercat Road Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project. As Project
construction proceeded, several issues arose requiring additional
construction management services beyond the original scope defined in
Task Order No. 1. This amendment is in the amount of $83,768 primarily
covers additional inspection services required due to the addition of night
shift and weekend work as well as delays that extended the duration of the
project. GM Currie noted that the 3™ Party CM services provided on the
project were extremely valuable to USD staff, providing regular updates,
quality control and documentation of this critical project.

On a motion made by Director Kite and seconded by Director Fernandez,
the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Contract
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1 with Brown & Caldwell for
providing additional construction management services for the |-680 at
Sabercat Road Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project. The motion carried
unanimously.
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10.

Action
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RESOLUTION NO. 2719, ACCEPTING THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE

THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING INTERIM IMPROVEMENTS

PROJECT FROM ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING

CONSTRUCTION, INC. AND AUTHORIZING THE ATTORNEY FOR THE

DISTRICT TO RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

Technical Services Manager Sami Ghossain reported that on January 28,
2013, the Board awarded the Project’s construction contract to Anderson
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. in the amount of $633,001. Staff
issued the Notice to Proceed on February 27, 2013 with a scheduled
completion date of October 25, 2013. Anderson Pacific Engineering
Construction, Inc. substantially completed all contract work on October 21,
2013. Staff provided construction management services and The Covello
Group provided general inspection services for the project. The District
has assumed beneficial use of the Project. Some punchlist and
administrative requirements remain to be done.

Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Thickener
Control Building Interim Improvements Project from Anderson Pacific
Engineering Construction, Inc. by Resolution, and authorize the Attorney
for the District to record a Notice of Completion at the Alameda County
Recorder’s Office.

GM Currie said that a tour of the Building will be set up for the Board soon,
before construction of the next phase begins.

On a motion by Director Toy and seconded by Director Handley, the
Board approved Resolution No. 2719, accept the construction of the
Thickener Control Building Interim Improvements Project from Anderson
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc., and authorizing the attorney for the
district to record a Notice of Completion. The motion carried unanimously.



11.

Action
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REVIEWING AND APPROVING POLICY NO. 2165, REVISED
PAPERLESS BOARD AGENDA PACKET AND USE OF ELECTRONIC
EQUIPMENT

Business Services Manager Rich Cortes briefed the Board that staff is
implementing a Wi-Fi network that is connected to the District’'s network.
In order to securely implement connections to the network, IT will work
with each Board member to configure one device compatible with Good
Reader and Drop Box.

The previously adopted Paperless Board Agenda and Use of Electronic
Equipment Policy was based on a mi-fi infrastructure that did not connect
to the District's network. The Wi-Fi implementation requires the policy to
be updated.

District Attorney Dave O’Hara gave a brief overview of the public records
act and how it would affect board members’ usage. Records of actions will
likely be kept for two years.

Board Member Lathi inquired about the life of personal electronic devices
(iPads), and Mr. Cortes said the District had determined that to be four
years.

On a motion by Director Toy and seconded by Director Handley, the
Board approved Policy 2165. The motion carried unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS

12.
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SCHOOL OUTREACH PRESENTATION VIDEO

This video was presented to the Board at the request of Board Member
Kite, who believes the video needs updating and a better focus on
wastewater. Coach Michael Dunning said the EC Team is working with the
City of Fremont on a video for the Clean Water Program, but will provide a
great wastewater focus. The Board will be notified when it is completed,
so they can review. Director Kite would like to see a video that is
illustrative of the good work we do at USD, including biosolids recycling,
grease management and green projects. We should consider using USD’s
plant in the video. Staff should explore the cost of preparing our own
video. Any video should reflect the cultural diversity of our service area.
Refer this topic to the Legal and Community Affairs Committee for further
discussion.
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13.

14.

ANNUAL REPORT ON BIOSOLIDS

Deputy GM Ed McCormick presented this report. USD did an excellent job
in FY13 of cost-effectively reusing 100% of our biosolids in the form of
non-food crop fertilizer (land application - 74%), compost (21%), and
landfill alternative daily cover (5%). For FY13 (July 2012 through June
2013), USD produced and beneficially reused 20,091 wet tons of
biosolids, which is 2% more than that produced in FY12. Biosolids
dewatering performance improved to 24.0% solids in FY13, from 23.2%
solids in FY12.

USD biosolids quality continued in FY13 to meet all USEPA 503
Regulations, as it has done since these regulations went into effect in
1994. For the first time since 2010, USD biosolids management costs
topped $600,000 (at $622,000). However, at an average of ~$31/wet ton,
USD continues to benefit from very low biosolids management costs. In
fact, our costs have only increased 25% over the past eight years, an
average of approximately 3% per year.

Director Handley asked what each % additional solids would save the
District annually.

Director Fernandez asked if the District was being paid for its biosolids, or
if we were paying to have them disposed of. DGM McCormick said the
District is paying to have them disposed of at this time.

Deputy GM McCormick also updated the Board on the activities of the Bay
Area Biosolids to Energy Coalition.

Director Kite inquired what large cities like New York or Chicago do with
biosolids. DGM McCormick said he would inquire and report back.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE JUNE 2012 CALPERS RETIREMENT VALUATION

Principal Financial Analyst Scott reviewed this item with the Board. There
were no questions.

Page 9 of 164



Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting
November 11, 2013
Page 7

15. SUCCESSION PLANNING UPDATE

GM Currie presented this item. USD has been working on succession
planning since 2000 in anticipation of the potential loss of key employees
due to the age of our workforce and pending retirement of the “Baby
Boom” era employees. While many retirements were delayed by the
recession, we have begun see a large number of employees retire or
announce dates for their retirement.

The District has implemented many programs for knowledge capture and
knowledge transfer for those employees who have unique information
about their jobs and facilities at USD. We have also been documenting
our knowledge and skills for future employees.

Director Handley asked about the GM’s blog and what comments the GM

had received. Mr. Currie said he had not had a chance to check the blog
yet.

16. CHECK REGISTER

Director Handley inquired about flu shots, saying that it appears only 50%
of employees received them. He suggested we might want to think of
ways to increase that number in the future.

Director Fernandez asked about pigeon abatement. Manager Simonich
said netting will be installed soon as the latest attempt to discourage the
pigeons.

17. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS

The following committees met: Budget & Finance; Construction;
Legislative; and Personnel.
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18. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Currie reported the following:

1.

2.

B w

Steve Bowman has been hired as the new Technical Training
Coordinator.

Interviews were held last week for Larry Simmers’ TPO Coach
position, and hiring interviews will be held this week.

There were again no spills for the month of October.

There was 1 one-gallon spill last weekend.

The Safety recognition Breakfast will be held on 11/19/13 from
6:30 to 8:15 a.m. So far, the District has worked over 270 days
without an OSHA-reportable incident.

. There will be a District-wide meeting of all employees on

November 19" at 3:00 p.m.

. On November 13" the Alameda County Special Districts

Association will meet here for a breakfast business meeting.
USD hosts this event once every two years.

The student and her father here at the last Board meeting have
since returned and taken a tour of the facility.

19. OTHER BUSINESS

Director Kite inquired about the USD presence on Jarvis Road. Manager
Ghossain explained why the crews were there, and said he would follow-
up with an email tomorrow.

Director Lathi announced that Item 22 had been pulled from the agenda.
23. ADJOURNMENT

At 8:26 p.m., the Board adjourned to the next Regular Board Meeting on
Monday, November 25, 2013 in the Boardroom at 7:00 p.m.

SUBMITTED: ATTEST:

TOM GRAVES JENNIFER TOY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD SECRETARY
APPROVED:

ANJALI LATHI

PRESIDENT
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GENERAL MANAGER’S SUMMARY
Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during October 2013.

ODOR COMPLAINTS: USD received 5 odor complaints. Three of these were found to
be related to the sewer and corrective action was taken. USD received no odor
complaints associated with the treatment plant. Our new mist odor masking system
was operational throughout the month.

SAFETY: There were no accidents or injuries during the month. Training was
conducted by Mike Marzano on confined space entry procedures and fall protection.

FINANCIAL: USD received the final report from our auditors for FY13 as well as the
single audit for projects involving federal funds through the SRF Loan program. The
audits and financial statements will be presented to the Board Audit Committee in
November.

COLLECTION SYSTEM: The group completed the month of October without a spill.
Several staff members received training on a new system for recording pipeline defects
during TV inspection and were certified in the new process.

PLANT OPERATIONS: Aeration Blower No. 9 was removed from service for repair as a
result of a failure in the electric motor bearing. This critical equipment is expected to be
returned to service before wet weather season begins.

PROJECTS: The pipeline has been installed in the casing under 1-680 for the Sabercat
project. The contractor continues work on the Cogeneration Project and remains on
schedule. A request for proposal was sent to several firms to initiate the study of
alternatives for restoration of Hayward Marsh. Staff continues training and data
migration for conversion to the new Hansen Version 8 computerized maintenance
management system.

STAFFING & PERSONNEL: Recruitments for the month have included the
Administrative Specialist for the CIP team and the Technical Training Program
Manager. Raymond Chau was selected as the new CIP Coach. Larry Simmers, long
time plant operator and Operations Coach announced his retirement effective in
November. USD submitted the annual report to the State Controller’s office on salary
and benefits and a response to the Grand Jury on employee benefits.

G.M. ACTIVITIES: For the month of October, the GM was involved in the following:

e External meetings including EBDA Managers and EBDA Commission and the Union City
State of the City address. Internal meetings included the Safety Committee, Alternate
Compensation Task Force and Records Management.

e Biennial training for prevention of harassment in the workplace.

¢ Hosting the annual employee recognition BBQ.

¢ Final joint labor-management review of the Memorandum of Understanding

GM-1
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HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 29,2013 to October 18, 2013

Reg. Total Historical FY13
DIVISION Hours Lt Duty o/IT Leaves* Sick STD wcC Sick STD wC Average Number
of Employees
General Manager Staff 2,100 340 35 110 133
14% 1.4% 1.7%
Business Service 12,470 1 1,610 164 14 713 211
11% 1.2% 0.1% 1.6% 0.5% Current Number of
Vacant Positions (1)
Technical Service 17,554 43 2,486 482 116 2,190 499
12% 2.4% 0.6% 3.4% 0.8%
Collection System 15,956 987 3,774 684 330 1 1,565 235 124
Week Per Employee (2)
Treatment & Disposal 12,758 356 2,567 385 320 971 144 35.11
17% 2.5% 2.1% 2.0% 0.3%
FMC 11,412 807 1,788 264 1,265 74 33 Proiected Average
Per Employee (3
Totals 72,250 2193 | 12,566 2,015 780 1] 6,814 1,163 157 29 40
% 85.2% 2.6% 14.8% 2.4% 0.9% 0.0% 2.4% 0.5% 1.3%

(1) Current vacancies include: Business Services (0), Collections (1), FMC (0), T& (0), TSCS (0)

(2) An employee using 3 weeks vacation, 11 holidays, 2 HEC days and 40 hours of sick leave will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year.
With four weeks vacation, 34.2 hours per week.

(3) Target goal for sick leave incentive program is 47 hours per employee per year.
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ODOR REPORT
October 2013

During the recording period from October 01, 2013 through October 31, 2013, there were five odor
related service requests received by the District.

City: Fremont

1. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/21/2013 Time: 3:20 pm

Location: CALAVERAS AV Reported By: David Contreras
Wind (from): North East Wind Speed: 3 mph
Temperature: 0 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:

Inspected the manholes and the storm canal behind the house. We found a musty sewer

smell. We found odor at U17025 & U17024 which tested at 0.5 to 3 ppm H2S. The homeowner
said sewer odors do occur on occasion from the two manholes in front of his house. | informed
the homeowner that | would notify management of this situation. This sewer has since been
dosed with caustic to prevent H2S generation.

2. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/21/2013 Time: 4:00 pm
Location: TIMPANOGAS CR Reported By: Niel Kumar
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed: mph
Temperature: 0 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up:

Inspected manholes and found them to be clean from our recent cleaning operations.

We responded to a complaint about an odor in the house after the hydro crew cleaned lines in the
area. We spoke to the homeowner after talking to the hydro cleaning crew. We found the traps
were sucked dry and sewer odors were entering the house through traps. We advised the
homeowner to run water to fill the traps in the house to stop any odors from entering into their
house.

City: Newark

3. Complaint Details:

Date: 10/15/2013 Time: 2:00 pm

Location: NEWPARK MALL RD Reported By: Raj/ Hometown Buffet
Wind (from): North Wind Speed: 8 mph
Temperature: 80 Degrees F Weather: Sunny

Response and Follow-up:

Inspected the manholes, storm drain inlet, grease interceptor and the surrounding area outside the
building. We found there were no odors coming from our manholes or storm drain inlet. The
grease interceptor didn't smell from the outside, but the gas tech did alarm when | tested the
interceptor through the pick hole. We did find a foul odor inside the building near both the men’s
and women's restroom but the gas tech didn't pick up any of these odors. We contacted the
complainant and told him our findings. We gave him a USD brochure and recommended he
gets the interceptor cleaned.
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4. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/15/2013
Location: HONEYSUCKLE DR
Wind (from): North
Temperature: 80 Degrees F

Response and Follow-up:

Time: 4:30 pm

Reported By: Michelle Padilla
Wind Speed: mph
Weather: Sunny

Inspected the manholes, storm drain inlet and surrounding area, but found no odors. Used the gas
tech and got an alarm from this trunk line manhole. The homeowner stated over the phone she
noticed an odor coming from manhole where Honeysuckle turns into Manzanita. She thinks the

odor is coming from the Hetch-Hetchy pipe. We were unable to get a hold of the homeowner so we
left her a message to call us back so we could convey our findings. We also informed her to

call us back should the odor return so we could come back to find the source of the odor. This sewer
has since been dosed with caustic to prevent H2S generation.

City: Union City
5. Complaint Details:
Date: 10/4/2013

Location: SAN CARLOS WY

Wind (from): North East
Temperature: 79 Degrees F

Response and Follow-up:

Time: 11:15am
Reported By: Dorothy Child

Wind Speed: 12 mph
Weather: Sunny

Inspected manholes adjacent to the house. We also inspected a crawl space under the house.
We found no odors in or outside of the house. | could not detect any odors and the gas tech
detected no gasses. We relayed findings to complainant.
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USD Revenues
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Union Sanitary District

Board Report - Holdings

Report Format: By Transaction

Group By: Asset Class

Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 10/31/2013

Credit Settlement Face Coupon YTM @ I\é::)l(lt Maturity % of

Description CUSIP/Ticker Rating 1 Date Amount/Shares Cost Value Rate Market Value Cost Date Date Portfolio
Agencies
FHLB 0.4 6/27/2014 313379N47 X';’;’dys' 6/6/2012 2,000,000.00  1,999,980.00  0.400  2,003,300.00  0.401 6/27/2014 5.14
g;'l"f/zzflf 3133XWKVO X'g;dys' 3/21/2012 2,000,000.00  2,075,820.00  2.375  2,016,800.00  0.450 3/14/2014 5.33
2?390‘1?313 3135G0SE4 X;;’dys' 12/5/2012 2,000,000.00  2,000,000.00  0.420  2,000,440.00  0.420 6/5/2015 5.14
FIMA L 5/16/2014° 31308n6n5  NIo0%Ys” 3/21/2012 925,000.00 934,795.64  1.000 929,680.50  0.505 5/16/2014 2.40
‘S\:',zr';‘;f' / 6,925,000.00 7,010,595.64 1.071  6,950,220.50 0.435 18.00
CAMP
CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,784.76 9,784.76  0.100 9,784.76  0.100  N/A N/A 0.03
:::r:‘;?' / 9,784.76 9,784.76  0.100 9,784.76 0.100 0.03
Certificates of Deposit
’;}';’6328‘1‘40'75 02005QF24  None 5/16/2012 245,000.00 245,000.00  0.750 245,615.71  0.750 5/16/2014 0.63
g\/pg/'go'ﬁ”k 055 037830LH7  None 6/6/2012 250,000.00 250,000.00  0.550 250,347.42  0.550 6/6/2014 0.64
?2"/‘9’4328‘;30'35 05568P2D8  None 12/26/2012 240,000.00 239,676.00  0.350 240,017.69  0.503 11/14/2013 0.62
[ljils/cz(’l"/ezro?g"k 05 5546713E1 None 12/26/2012 240,000.00 239,995.90 0.500 240,047.50  0.502 11/21/2013 0.62
Fifth Third Bank 04 31677760 None 2/20/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00  0.400 240,141.34  0.400 2/20/2014 0.62

2/20/2014

GE Capital Bank 0.4
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Next

Credit Settlement Face Coupon YTM @ Call Maturity % of

Description CUSIP/Ticker Rating 1 Date Amount/Shares Cost Value Rate Market Value Cost Date Date Portfolio
10/17/2014 36163CFX3 NR 10/18/2013 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.400 244,880.93  0.400 10/17/2014 0.63
GE Capital Retail
Bank 0.95 36157PAU3 None 1/2/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.950 241,685.93  0.950 3/16/2015 0.62
3/16/2015
Goldman Sachs
Bank 0.75 38143AU78 None 11/30/2012 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,757.75  0.750 11/14/2014 0.62
11/14/2014
Sallie Mae Bank
0.75 11/14/2014 795450QK4 None 11/30/2012 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,757.75  0.750 11/14/2014 0.62
Sub Total /
Average 2,180,000.00 2,179,671.90 0.600 2,184,252.02 0.617 5.60
Corporate Issues
Credit Suisse USA Moodys-
Inc 5.125 22541LAMS Al Y 1/2/2013 1,500,000.00 1,569,840.00 5.125 1,514,940.00 0.610 1/15/2014 4.03
1/15/2014
General Electric Moodys-
Capital Corp 2.15 36962G5M2 Al Y 8/16/2013 1,000,000.00 1,021,670.00 2.150 1,019,860.00 0.590 1/9/2015 2.62
1/9/2015
General Electric Moodys-
Capital Corp 2.375 36962G5F7 Al Y 11/30/2012 500,000.00 517,745.00 2.375 513,345.00 0.980 6/30/2015 1.33
6/30/2015
General Electric Moodys-
Capital Corp 4.875 36962GP65 Al Y 9/18/2013 1,000,000.00 1,059,830.00 4.875 1,056,740.00 0.750 3/4/2015 2.72
3/4/2015
JP Morgan Chase Moodys-
4.75 3/1/2015 46625HCE8 A2 1/2/2013 1,000,000.00 1,079,800.00 4.750 1,051,740.00 1.012 3/1/2015 2.77
Principal Life Moodys-
Income Fund Var. 74254PPF3 Y 5/21/2012 2,020,000.00 2,020,000.00 0.446 2,020,040.40 0.446 11/8/2013 5.19

AA3

Corp 11/8/2013
Sub Total / 7,020,000.00 7,268,885.00 3.119  7,176,665.40 0.668 18.67
Average
LAIF
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 18,448,527.47 18,448,527.47 0.266 18,448,527.47 0.266 N/A N/A 47.37
Sub Total /
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Next

Credit Settlement Face Coupon YTM @ Call Maturity % of

Description CUSIP/Ticker Rating 1 Date Amount/Shares Cost Value Rate Market Value Cost Date Date Portfolio
Average 18,448,527.47 18,448,527.47 0.266 18,448,527.47 0.266 47.37
Treasury
T-Note 0.375 Moodys-
11/15/2014 912828RQ5 Aaa 5/25/2012 2,000,000.00 2,000,624.00 0.375 2,004,687.40  0.362 11/15/2014 5.14
T-Note 1 5/15/2014 912828QM5 x:ac)dys- 3/21/2012 2,000,000.00 2,024,980.00 1.000 2,009,540.00 0.416 5/15/2014 5.20
Sub Total / 4,000,000.00 4,025,604.00 0.689  4,014,227.40 0.389 10.34
Average
Total / Average 38,583,312.23 38,943,068.77 1.006 38,783,677.55 0.404 100
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Union Sanitary District

Board Report - Activity
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
From 10/1/2013 To 10/31/2013

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total
BUY
GE Capital Bank 0.4 10/17/2014 36163CFX3 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.00 0.400 0.400 10/18/2013 245,000.00
Sub Total / Average 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.00 245,000.00
DEPOSIT
CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.82 0.82 0.00 0.000 10/31/2013 0.82
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 17,693.69 17,693.69 0.00 0.000 10/15/2013 17,693.69
Sub Total / Average 17,694.51 17,694.51 0.00 17,694.51
INTEREST
CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 0.82 0.000 10/31/2013 0.82
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 0.00 0.00 17,693.69 0.000 10/15/2013 17,693.69
Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 17,694.51 17,694.51
WITHDRAW
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,100,000.00 1,100,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/4/2013 1,100,000.00
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 600,000.00 600,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/11/2013 600,000.00
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/18/2013 500,000.00
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 700,000.00 700,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/23/2013 700,000.00
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/25/2013 100,000.00
Sub Total / Average 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0.00 3,000,000.00
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Directors
Pat Gacoscos
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers

Richard B. Currie
General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara

Attorney
Date: November 15, 2013
To: Board of Directors — Union Sanitary District
From: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer

Donna Wies, Quality Coordinator

Subject: Agenda Item No. 7a —Meeting of November 25, 2013
October Monthly Operations Report
District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures

Recommendation:

Information only.

Background:

This report summarizes progress meeting the District's strategic objectives for the first
quarter of fiscal year 2013-14.

Several new measures have been changed or are being reported for the first time.
¢ Response time to Contact USD e-mail inquiries is reported for the first time.
e Employee turnover rate is reported as total and non-retirement turnover.
e The definitions for sanitary sewer over flow have been changed to be consistent
with Regional Water Quality Control Board reporting definitions.

Staff will be available to answer questions.

Safety

The District experienced no accidents or injuries during the first quarter of FY 14. There
were no employees on lost or limited duty time during the quarter. On November 19,
District management will recognize employees for working 270 days without an accident.

All safety measures are meeting targets, except the percentage of employees trained vs.

planned. Make-up sessions for Confined Space Entry and Fall Protection will bring us up
to target in the second quarter.

See Table 1: Safety Objectives and Measures, for a full report.
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Agenda Item No. 7a
Meeting of November 25, 2013

Page 3
Table 1: Safety Objectives and Measures, continued
Objectives Measures FY 14 | Annual | v 3 | Eyq2 | FY 11 Comments
to Date | Target
; # Facility inspections Pump stations were
::c:)er?etg/ sggr 1 4 4 4 4 inspected 9/27/12.
practices and
potential hazards # management work
site observations 83 >266 /yr 332 340 377
Implemenft industry #_ b_est practices site 0 >2 > 3 3
best practices visits
# GM communication
on status of safety 1 >4 7 4 7 E-mail: 180 days
program & - without an accident
Communicate our performance
commitment to
safety
# safety strategy
reviews conducted by 2 6 6 6 6
ET and EHSPM
er;?:rs];imployee # of major safety 2 6 5 6 5 Confingd Space, Fall
training events offered protection.
Educate o Make-up sessions
employees in safe % of targeted . o 0 o o scheduled for
employees trained 72% >90% 97% 92% 99% | November

work practices

Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target

Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed
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Agenda Item No. 7a
Meeting of November 25, 2013

Page 4

Operational Excellence

The District is meeting targets for all operational excellence measures, except adverse
impacts to the environment due to a category 1 sanitary sewer overflow. There were more
adverse impacts to customers than usual reported this quarter, due to five plant odor
complaints being registered by one homeowner during the quarter. There have been no lant
odor complaints received since the end of September.

See Table 2, Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, for a full report.

See Table 3 for a list of public relations activities planned for FY 13.

Table 2: Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures

FY14to | Annua
Objectives Measurements Date | FY 13 FY 12 FY 11 Comments/
Target Progress
Stewardship: .
Demonstrate Progress m_eetmg
. public relation program 9 o o o o
responsible goals: 100% >90% 98% 111% 100% | See Table 3.
Ztsesmé?srisnhdlﬁr?; % qtrly milestones met
environment # emergency
Be prepared for preparedness drills or 1 3 2 2 2 E;’i'rﬁ’iiss pumping
emgrggncies training events 9
Service: Provide Total number of Plant odor
rella_ble, high quality ad\(e.r.se impacts USD 5 <10 7 5 10 complaints (from
service activities have on 1 homeowner)
external customers
Response to Contact
USD messages: 94% >90% New measure
% within 3 days
Response time to
service calls: % within 98% >95% 98% 97% 95%
1 hour
ECB Expenditures, % 95-
Fiscal of Board approved 23% 103% 97% 97% 96%
responsibility: budgeted
Ensure funding for .
critical programs Priority _Non-E?B 0 80- o o o
and projects, while Expenditures: % of 5% 110% 95% 82% 87%
maintaining , budgeted
comparable rates
P Residential Sewer NA >33 1oin 15t 45t | Reported 4" gtr
Accurately project Service Charges
and control costs Participation in
# regional projects 2 >2 4 > 2 BACC, Operator

with financial benefit

training
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Page 5
Table 2: Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, continued
Objectives Measurements | (Y | fonal | Fyq3 | Fy1z [Fy1|  Commens
# critical asset
failures; no 0 <2 0 2 0
Asset negative impact
Management: : .
Manage and #fa|lltJ_res_W|th t 0 0 0 0 0
maintain assets and negative impac
infrastructure # priority CIP
projects 1 11 11 6 10
completed
) # adverse
Environmental impacts on 1 0 0 1 0
Protection: environment
Maintain our ability
to meet current and Definition
future regulations # Category 2/3 0 <10 changed July
overflows -
2013
Implement projects i .
and programs that # Regional g?cil;:;omn :étteixﬁin;éon
benefit the projects with 2 >2 2 2 2 ACWD Water
environment environmental = Conservation
benefit Program
Efficiency: Optimize See Timeline and
processes, use Team Scorecards
technology effectively
) % of planned
II\E/Ir:i‘r)\’ItZi):\e:?i hl competency- Measure was
combatont flgxizle based training 30% | >90% | 155% modified
P ! milestones beginning FY 13
workforce
completed
Labor Relations:
Zrc;stﬁ)r ae :f)llaboratlve Total % of
maﬁa yement employees Reported 2" and
9 participating in NA | >60% | 52 50% | 49% P

relationship that
encourages new
ideas and continuous
improvement

District taskforces
or committees

4" qtrs

Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed
White= No target identified
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Page 6
Table 3: Public Relations Activities FY 14
Project Goal/Milestones 1t Qtr
USD website Update once a month N
Upgrade project
Press Releases 4 per year; post on web N
Newsletter October 2013 v
Community Outreach: | Earth Day Fair
3-4 events/year
Newark Days Fair N
Plant Tours as requested
Outreach to 5" grade teachers N
5™ grade presentations, 35+ /year
Alameda County Science & Engineering Fair
Career Outreach/Fairs in Jr High or High School
Career outreach to colleges or other groups
ROP/Solano College support N
Business Outreach Industrial Advisory Council meetings N
Green Business certification outreach 2x/yr
Certificate of Merit Presentations
Civic Outreach Presentations to City Councils, clubs as
requested
Charity Events 3-4 events N

Back to School Sept 2013

CIP Public Meetings

As appropriate
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Directors

Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Richard B. Currie

General Manager/District
Engineer

David M. O’'Hara
Attorney

DATE November 14, 2013
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer
Ed McCormick, Deputy General Manager
Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 7b - Meeting of November 25, 2013
Information Item: Collection Services Process Scorecard

Recommendation
Information only
Background

We are in our thirteenth year of using this Process Scorecard. This planning tool
continues to be very useful in maintaining our focus on the prevention/reduction of
sanitary sewer overflows and minimizing their impacts on our customers and the
environment.

Collection Services ensures that wastewater is kept in the gravity system from the point
of entry by the customer, until it is received and processed at the transport system and
the treatment plant.

In order to achieve the goal of SSO prevention/reduction, there are five processes that
need to be done well.

System Management
e 72 month cleaning and inspection of the entire system
o Effective selective line cleaning program
e Easement maintenance

Page 31 of 164



Page 2
Board Meeting November 25, 2013
Agenda ltem 7b

Pipe Assessment
e Televise to determine condition
e Address structural deficiencies through spot repairs or capital improvements
e Address pipe capacity issues

Control Roots
e Mechanical removal
e Chemical treatment

Control Fats, Oils, and Greases
e More frequent cleaning of selected lines
¢ Reduce entry into our collection system at the source

Service Requests
e Timely response
e Customer satisfaction

Performance targets are based on the amount of work that needs to be done to support
the 72 month sewer cleaning and inspection, selective cleaning, and root control
program, and productivity standards developed by the Collection System Collaborative
Benchmarking Group, in which USD participated.

Collection Services workgroup employees are updated monthly on their performance.
With this focused effort to prevent/minimize spills, we have managed to maintain a low
number of spills and claims from spills this past year. This year we are on course to
have another successful year, including the past sixteen months with only 2 SSOs,
maintaining our place as a leader in CA, in Wastewater Collection System Operations
and Maintenance.
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U FY13.YIE ..

Obje e € € 9 4 To Date 4 1arge
Customer Perspective:
¢ Minimize Overflows SSO’s # of Category 1 SSOs 1 SSOs 1 SSOs ¢ Zero Category 1 SSOs 0SSO Cat 1
# of Category 2 SSOs 0 SSO 0 SSOs < 10 Category 2 SSOs 0 SSOs Cat 2
¢ Minimize Negative Impact on Percent of spill recovery 100%  Recovery 100% Recovery * 50% Recovery N/A
Environment
SSO’s # of Repeats 0 SSO Repeats 0 SSO Repeats e Zero Repeats 0 SSO Repeats
Manage and maintain assets and ¢ Critical Asset Failures 0 Asset failure 0 Asset failure e Zero 0 Asset failure
infrastructure Sewer Main or MH Deficiency resulting in
Category 1 SSO, sink hole, injury or resulting
property damage > $2,000 due to one or more
of the following:
— Break, collapse, offset or hole in pipe or
— PMP not followed
— Corrosion
— Defect identified & corrective action not
¢ Stoppage in > 12” diameter mainline 0 Stoppages Stoppages e Zero 0 Stoppages
¢ # of times building becomes dangerous or Incidents 0 Incidents e Zero 0 Incidents
unsuitable for occupation.
Critical asset failure with a negative impact on 0 Incidents 0 Incidents Zero Incidents 0 Incidents
cus s or the envir t
¢ Provide Uninterrupted Service Response Time from notification thru initial 96.0%  w/i 1 hour 96.0% w/i 1 hour >95% w/i 1 hr 98.1% w/i 1 hour
contact includes dispatch time
¢ Reduce negative impacts of District|Number of odor complaints attributable to 0 Odors 0 Odor <2 0 Odors
SewWer.
Financial Perspective:
¢ Provide competitive service Cleaning — cost per ft/day/crew $0.45  Perft $0.45 Clean Per Ft Clean $.66 to $1.05 $0.61 Clean Per Ft
Cost per feet/day Televising — cost per ft/day/crew $0.82  Perft $0.82 TV Per Ft TV - $.80 to $1.40 $1.01 TV Per Ft
¢ Minimize Claims & Fines Total Cost of Claims/Fines (from SSO's) $0 Total Claims $0 Total Claims Claims <$2000 $0 Total Claims
$0 Total Fines $0 Total Fines Fines-$0 $0 Total Fines
Average cost per claim/fine $0 Avg Claims $0  Avg Claims Claims <$1000 $0 Avg Claims
$0 Avg Fines $0 Avg Fines Fin_es-$0 $0 Avg Fines
Internal Process Perspective:
. Trouble Call & SSO response |Response Time 96.0%  w/i1 hour 96.0% w/i 1 hour > 95% w/i1 hr 98.8% wi 1 hour
. Pipe/Problem A t Number of Repeat Spills 0 Zero Zero per year < 2 per year Zero per year
. Preventative Maint. Program |2 Yr Catch Up Plan % Complete 22.5% % Complete 22.5% % Complete Annual Goal = 100% 81.6% complete
TV Goal Footage 297,296 TV Footage 297,296 YTD TV Ftg 1,318,689 826,571 TV Footage
. Cleaning (other cleaning omitted) |Per Month Cleaning Footages 131,049 Avg Ft Per Mo 131,049 Avg Mo 129,121 Mo; 1,549,454 YE (w/o CI)] 107,055 Mo, 1,284,656 YE
o Feet per crew day o Feet Per Crew/Day 6,445 Ft Per Crew/Day 6,445 Ft Per Crew/Day2,500 to 4,000 Per Crew Day 4,987 Ft Per Crew/Day
o # of Crew Days o _# of Crew Days 20.3 # of Crew Days 20.3 # of Crew Days |21 to 33 Crew Days 20.8 # of Crew Days
. Televising Per Month Televising Footages 99,046 Avg Ft Per Mo 99,046 Avg Mo 109,891 Avg Mo, 1,318,689 YE 68,880 Mo, 826,571 YE
o Feet per crew day o Feet Per Crew/Day 4,793 Ft Per Crew/Day 4,793 Ft Per Crew/Day2,000 to 3,500 Per Crew Day 3,680 Ft Per Crew/Day
o # of Crew Days o _# of Crew Days 20.7 # of Crew Days 20.7 _# of Crew Days |24 to 42 Crew Days 18.5 # of Crew Days
¢ Key Vehicles not Available For Days Per Mo 2 Hydrojets Not Available 0 Days 0 Days < 3 Days 0 Days
Preventative Maintenance Program [Days Per Mo 2 TV Vans Not Available 0 Days 0 Days < 3 Days 0 Days
Learning & Growth:
¢ Maintain and increase employee # new modules completed 1 Module 0 Modules 1 Modules
skills 0 Modules
# of Training Modules w/instuction completed 0 Module 0 Modules 1 Modules
2 Modules
# of individual Competency Assessments passed 0 A t: 0 Assessments 27 A t: 38
¢ Communicate Performance
Data to Teams # of time info shared with Team 3 Min. per mo 3 Min. per mo Min. 1 per/mo 12
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DATE:

MEMO TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

November 25, 2013

Board of Directors

Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer

Directors

Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Richard Currie

General Manager/District
Engineer

David M. O’'Hara
Attorney

Tom Graves, Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary

Agenda ltem No. 8 - Meeting of November 25, 2013

APPROVING A MOTION TO CANCEL THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEETING OF DECEMBER 23, 2013.

Recommendation

Motion to approve.

Background

The second regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in December falls on
the day before Christmas Eve. Traditionally, this is a time that many employees take
vacation leave, and in the past, the Board has cancelled the second meeting in
December. Again this year, staff is recommending that the Board consider cancelling or
rescheduling the December 24" meeting. We do not anticipate any critical actions

requiring Board approval relative to either operations or contract work.

The next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for January 14, 2014.
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Directors

Manny Farnandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
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DISTRICT
Officers
Richard B. Currie
General Manage:
Disirict Engineer
David M. O'Hara
ANomey
DATE: November 18, 2013
MEMO TO: Board of Directors — Union Sanitary District
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer
Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager
Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
Debi Kull, Sr. Accountant
SUBJECT: Agenda item No. 9 — Meeting of November 25, 2013

Accepting Financial Statements — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Recommendation

Receive and file financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Background

The District engages an independent accaunting firm to audit the financial statements
and records for each fiscal year. Afttached for your review are the audit reports on the
District's comparative financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
and the Single Audit report cavering State Revolving Fund proceeds (Federal portion)
for Primary Clarifier, Substation 1, and Boyce Lift Station projects.

Operating Revenues:
FY *13 operating revenues increased by 4.4% to $43,503,113.

Fiscal Year 2013 $43,503,113
Fiscal Year 2012 $41,657,935
Fiscal Year 2011 $38,474,772



Board of Directors
Meeting of November 25, 2013
Page Two

Operating Expenses:
FY '13 operating expenses, before depreciation, increased by 14.1% to $34,154,742.

Fiscal Year 2013 $34,154,742
Fiscal Year 2012 $29,919,729
Fiscal Year 2011 $30,449,295

Net Assets.

FY ‘13 Net Assets decreased by .82% to $350,983,722.
Fiscal Year 2013 $350,083,722
Fiscal Year 2012 $353,867.248
Fiscal Year 2011 $355,370,629

Fund Balances:

The total ending fund balances for capacity, renewal and replacement, and other
restricted and unrestricted purposes decreased from $52.1 miilion in FY '12 to $51.6
million in FY '13.

Audit Comments:

There were no audit comments for FY13.

Atftachments

5072 Benaon Road
Union Clty, CA D4587
(510) 477 7500 Fax (510) 477 7501
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Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of nther auditors, the financial siatements referred to above present
fairly, m all matoria! respeets, the finagcial position of Umion Sanitary District as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America, a8 well as accounting systems provided by
the State Comptroller's Office for Special Districts

As described in Note | 1o the financinl statements, Union Sanitary District adopted new accounting guidance,
GASB Statement No. 63, Financlal Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Swpplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the menagement’s
discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress for pension and retirce health benefit plan, as listed
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement 1he basic financial statementz. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporiing for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economie, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Ainerica, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
end comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we abtained during our sudit of the basic financial statements. We da not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The financial information listed as supplementary information
in the table of conlents is presented (or purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The supplementary infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial stalements themsetves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with suditing standards generatly accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly staled in all materinl respects in relation to the basic financisl
statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Requaired by Govermunent Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued cur report dated October 23, 2013, on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financlal reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matiers. The purpase of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
festing, and not to provide an opinion on the mternal control over financial reporting or on complisnce. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governrment Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

t
%vn‘,uf, ﬁ""': 'D-rf C'i LUl

Pleasanton, California
October 23, 2013



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2013

This section of the District’s annual financial veport presents an analysis of the District’s financial performance
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This information is presented in conjunction with the audited
financial stalements, which follow thia section.

The District, which was established in 1918 and subsequeatly reorganized in 1923, is empowered to own and
operate wastewater facilities and the Board of Direclors may prescribe, revise and collect fees or charges for
services and facilities of the District in connection with its wastewater system,

FINANCIAL HIGH LIGHTS

»  The District's total ending net position decreased by $2.9 million as & result of this year's operations, At
June 30, 2013 net position totaled $350.9 million That is, the District’s total assets exceeded liabilitics
by $350.9 million

» During the year, the District had expenses, including depreciation of $16 8 million, which exceeded
sewer service charges, contributed capital, interest, and other opersting revenues by $2.9 million. This
compares to last year when expenses exceeded revenues by $1.5 million,

e Long-term liabilities increased by $577,000 during the current fiseal year duc to the addition of State
Revoiving Fund loan proceeds (debt).

o  The Disirict placed $10 miilion in assets into service compared 1o $3.9 million lest year
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of & series of financial statements. The District-wide financial statements include the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These provide
information about the ectivities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District's
property, debt obligations and other fimancinl mstters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a
manner similar to the financial reports of a business entesprise.

The noles to the [inancial siatements provide namative explanations or additional data neaded for full disclosure.

= Statement of Net Position ~ Includes all District assets and ligbilities and provides information about
the nature end amounls of investments in respurces (assets) and obligations to creditors (liabilities). Ut
also provides the basis for computing ratc of return; evaluating the capital structure of the District; and
assessing Lhe liquidity and financial flexibility of the District

¢ Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — All of the current year revenues and
expenscs are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This
staternent measures the success of District operations over the past year and can be used to determine
whether the District has successfully recovered all its costs through ils user foecs and other charges,
profitability, and credit worthiness.

o Stafement of Cash Flows - The primary purpose of this statement is o provide information about
District cash receipis, cash disbursements and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investments,
and capilal and non-capits!l financing activities. It illustrates the source of revenue, purposes for which i
was used, and change in cash balance duning the reporting period.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Repaorting the District s a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenires, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis focuses on the net positian (Table 1) end changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's activities.

Net position of the District's busineas-type activities decreased from $353.9 milllon to $350.9 million.
Unrestricted nct assets -~ the pan of net aseets that can ba used o finance day-to-day operations withou
constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legnl requirements - were $36.3 million at
June 30, 2013, The decrease in total net position was the result of a decrease in current assets of $806,000,
meinly cash, a decrease in net capital assets of §1.5 million, due to increased vonstruction in progress and
depreciation, a decrease in current labilities of approximeately $27,000, and an increase in long term ohligations
of §577,000.

Table 1 - Condensed Statement of Net Pasition

Dollar Percent

Fiscs] Year Fiscal Year Flseal Year Change Change
2012-2013 2011-2012 2010-11 FY 13 to FY12 FY 13 o FY12
Curvent and other assot $ 62855852 § G3661824 § 603457I5 5 (BUAATD) -1.3%
Capita] assets 335,041,723 136,569,846 332,846,978 (1,527,723) 0.5%
Tota assets 397,897,175 400,231,270 393,292,713 {2,334,095) 4.6%
Cutrent lisbilitica 10,007,413 10,034,883 ,909,084 (27,470) 03%
Laomg-term liabilities 36,906,040 36,329,139 29,013,000 576,901 1.6%
Total linbilities 45,913,453 46,364,022 17,922,084 549,431 1.2%

Net Positlon:

Net investment in capltal asscts 294,393 392 296,939,157 300,489,83] (2,545,765) 09%
Restricted 20,297,820 19,346,378 16,877,836 551,442 4.9%
Unresiricted 36,292,510 37,581,713 38,002,962 {1,289,203) -34%
Total net position $ 350,983,722 § 353,867,246 § 3553M0,629 § (2,883,526) 0.8%

In the prior year, FY 2012, Net position decreased from $355.4 million to $353.9 millicn, due mainly to an
increase in curment and other assets of $3,1 million, mainly investments, an increase in net capital asscts of $3.6
millien, due to increased construction in progress, an increase in current liabilities of approximately $].1 million,
and an increase in long ierm dedt of $7.3 million.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Table 2 — Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Dollar Percent
Fiical Year Flacal Yeur Flseal Year Change Change
2012-2013 2010-12 2010-11 FY13taFY11l FY13iloFYI2
Revenucs.
Sew er servioe charges (SSC) § 42339311 § 40630578 5 3EA486824 S 1,708,733 4.2%
Other revenues 1,163,802 1,(27,357 087,948 136,445 13.3%
lavestment income and net grins 178,690 248,337 174,328 {69.647) -20.0%
Connection feea 2,864 810 2,848 48R 3,381.963 16,322 0.6%
Total revenues with connection fees 46,546,613 44,754,760 43,131,062 1,791,853 4 (%%
Expenses:
Sowage treatment 16,088,929 14,255,266 14,342,352 1,833.663 12.9%
Sewage colloction and engincoring 11,954,345 9,712,643 10,532,692 2,241.700 23.1%
General and administration 6,111,468 5.951.81 5,574.25¢% 159,650 2.7%
Intetrest 1,1]8,677 858,162 LI14,M3 280,515 32.7%
Depreciation 16,776,307 16,790,277 16,321,858 113,970} 0.1%
Losa on rdiremend of capital asseis 1,479,254 127,430 751,601 1,351,824 1060.8%
Tolal eapenses 53 548,980 47 695, 598 48,639,067 5,853,382 12.3%
Decrease in nel position before coniributions
and special itema (7,002,367 {2,941 838) 5,508,004 (4.061,529) 138.1%
Contritted eapita} and BBDA loss 4,118,841 1,437,457 4373195 1681 364 1 86.5%
Change in Nel Position (2,881,526} {1,500,381) (1,134,209 {1,380,145) 91.8%
Beginning Net Posilion 353867248 335,370,629 356,504 B3R (1,503,381} -0.4%
Ending Net Position § 350,983,722 § 153857248 3§ 1553704329 5§ (2,883,526) {1.8%

The District's total revenues such as capacity fees and sewer service charges increased by $1.8 miltion, or 4.0
percent for the year ended June 30, 2013. Thus is due mainly to a 5.0 percent increase in the sewer service charge
rate, an increase in capacity fee revenue, and a decrease in interest. Contribuled capital increased by $2.7
million. The total cost of all programs snd services, including depreciation, was ning percent higher than last
year. Most major cost categories increased over 2012 costa except for repairs and maintenance, utilities, ERDA,
and rents and leases. The main increase was for non-capital project expenses of $3.8 million for Force Main
Improvement Project, Inka Demolition, Facilities Condition Assessment, among others.

In the prior year, FY 2012, total revenues such as capacity fees and sewer services charges increased by §1.6
million, This was due mainly to a five percent increase in the sewer service charge rale, an increase in capacity
fee revenue and a decrease in interest. The total cost of all programs and services, including depreciation, was
1.9 percent lower than FY 2011. Most major cost categones decreased, including non-capital project expense,
insurance, office supplies, repairs and maintenance, and operating supplies.






UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2013
Additions to Construction in Progress totaled $13.9 million. Major projects included:

Table 3 — Additicns to Construction in Progress

Boyce Road Lifl Slation b3 2,513,378
Primary Clariliers 1-4 1,909,633
Cogeneration {,901,083
Thickener No. 3 & 4 Rehabilitation 1,451,482
Headworks & Emergency Ouifall Lnprovements 834,599
Misc. Spot Repairs Phase 4 739,827
PL.C Replacement 709,653
Thickener Control Building and Interim Improvements 590,956
[-6B() al Sabercat Replacement 574,264
SFPUC at Mission Blvd & [-880 530,756
Force Main Improvement 437,232
Others 1,798,762
Total $ 13,991,625

This year's major additions (placed into service) included:

Table 4 - Total Assets Placed inte Service

Substation No. 1 Replacement 3 2,618,082
Secondary Digester No. | Dome Replacement 789,580
Misc, Spol Itepairs - Phase 4 752,217
Vehicles 565915
Force Main Improvement 340,000
SFPUC at Mission Blvd. & I-880 274,790
Primary Digesier No. 4 Rehabilitation 176,245
Grit Hopper Replacement 122,547
Contributed Capitai {pipe¢s and manholes) 4,009,985
Others 372,557
Total $§ 10,021918

More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in Nofe 2 to the financial statewents,
Debt Administration

At year-end, the District had $40.6 million in notes outstanding versus $39.6 million last vear. This debt consists
of nine State Revolving Fund loans.

Other obligalions include accrued vacation pay and sick leave More detailed information about the District's
long-term liabilities is presenied in Note 5 to the financial statements,



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
ECONOMIC AND OTHER FACTORS

The District's elected and appoinied officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2013 budget.
One of thoso faclors was the cconomy. Increased salary and benefit costs, as well as increased CIP projeots, were
taken into consideration. In addition, the Board coneidered increasing construstion costs when reviewing the
CIP. Sewer service charge rates increased 5% and Capacity fee rates increased 10%. The net Operatiug budget
was increased 3.5 percent, using a projecied staff vacancy factor of two percent.

The District's fiscal year 2013 capital budget called for expenditures of $13.6 millien for Boyce Rd, Lift Station
Replacement, Cogeneration, INKA Structure Demolltion, Primary Clarifier Rehabiitation, Thickener Control
Building Improvements and Thickener Mecharism 3 & 4 Replacement among others. The Engineering group
prioritized and rescheduled CIP projects in order to help achieve cur goal of positive fund balances. The CTP
budget incrensed by $4.5 million fom fiscal year 2012.

The District’s fiscal year 2014 budget includes a six percent increase in the operating budget with s two percent
staff vacancy factor, and a capilal budget which calls for expenditures of $17.5 million for Cogeneration,
Headworks Canvsyors and Screenings, RAS Pump Stations Pumps and Valve Replacement, 1680 Crossing at
Sabercat Rd, Boyoe Road Lift Station Replacement, Veasy Street Sewer Improvements, Acration Internal Lift
Pumps, and Cest Iron Pipe Lining projects. Sewer service charges will increase 5.7 percent and Capaaity fee
rates will increase ten percent,

The District will use its revenues to finance current projects, although applications will continue to be submitted
1o the State Weter Resources Control Board for Sate Revolving Fund loans for upcoming projects.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accouniability for the money it receivea, If
yon have questions about this report or need additiona] financial information, contact the District at (510) 477-
7500.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
2013 pilvs
CURRENT ASSETS
Cagh, ¢ash equivalents 5 41752 % 1,508,810
Investmenas 50,804,062 50,335,929
Accounts rececivable net 2,771,607 2,961,626
Interest receivable 99,811 192,858
Invemory 596,196 522,515
Other 21,659 19.609
Toal current nsseis 54,937 287 55541347
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Asscts
Nom depreciable capital assets:
Lapd and improvements 5.593. 910 5195903
Construction in progress 31,800,155 25,004,233
Capacity Permit 6,043,832 6,043,632
Depreciabie assets
L. filiry plant in service 609,293 880 604,087,702
Less  Accummlaled depreciation {317,689.873) (304,052,027}
Net capital asselg 335,041,723 136 560 446
her Assets
Restricted cash and cesh equivalents - 113,296
Restricted investmenns 10,000 10,000
Net OPEB asset 1,435,718 1,425 564
Investmens in East Bay Dischargers Authority 6,472,447 6,561,617
Total other assets 7918, 165 8,120477
Totsl non-current asscis 342,939,888 344,669,923
TOTAL ASSETS 397 897,175 400.231,270
CURRENT LIARILITIES
Accounts payable and sccrucd cxpenses 1,738,500 4,506,395
Custorner depoaits 381,542 263,021
Accrued payroll snd relaled expenses 671,896 660,06
Interest payable 552,503 405.430
Current portion of compensated absences 915.281 8318581
Current portion of long- term debt 3,742,251 3,301,150
Total current liabilites 10,007,413 10,034,883
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Long term debt net of current postion 38,906,040 36,329,139
Totsl long-term Habilifes 30,906,040 36,329,139
TOTAL LIABILITIES 46,913,453 46,364,022
NET POSITION
Net investment in capita] assets 294,393,192 296,939,157
Resiricted for:
Capacity purposes, expendable 16,093,405 15,123,448
SRF loan contingency reserve. non-expendable 4,204,415 4,222,930
Unrestricted 36,202,510 17,581,713
TOTAL NET PQSITION $ 350,983,722 § 153867248

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial staiements,
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS QF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer service charges
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Sewngo treatment
Sewage collection and engineering
General and administration
Totnl operating expenees before depreciatian

DEPRECIATION
Total operating expenses

OPERATING LOSS

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Net investment income snd net realized pains and losses
Interest Expense
Loss on retirement of capital assets
Gain {loss) on equity investment in East Bay Dischargers Authority

Net nog-operating revenuoe (expense)
1.OSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Comnection fees and other contributed capital

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OP YEAR
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

The accompenying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements,

1

2013 2012
§ 42339311 $ 40,630,578
1,163,802 1,027,357
43,503,113 41,657,935
15,088,929 14,255,266
11,954,345 9,712,645
6,111,468 5,951,818
34,154,742 29,919,729
16,776,307 16,790,277
50,931,040 46,710,006
(7.427,936) (5,052.071)
178,690 248,337
(1,138,677) (858,162)
(1,479,254) (127,430)
(89,170} (100,827}
(2,528,411) (838,082)
{9.956,347) (5,890,153)
7,072,821 4,386,772
(2,883,526) (1,503,381)
353,867,248 355,370,629

$ 350,983,722 § 353,867,248




UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AL VIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Paymenis {o omployees
Payroents for benefits on bebalf of employees
Receipls (disbursements) for deposits
Payments refated to poatemploymen benefits
Other operaling recelpis {disbursemenis}

Cash flows provided by (used in) opetating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Proc¢eeds from state revolving Joen funds
Interest paid on long-term debt
Acquikition and construction of capital assers
Connection fecs and other relaled revenues fromn developers

Cash Nows provided by (used in) copital and related firncing sctivilics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net loss on disposal of cepitol asseis
Purchase of investmenta
Proceeds irom sales and meturities of investmenta

Cash flows provided by (used in) investing sctivities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Unresfricted cash and cesh equivatents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Operating loss
Adjusumens to reconcile operating loss to cash flows
provided by operating ectivities

Deprecistion
(Incresre) decrease in recounts receivable mnd other ansers
Increase {decrease) m accounts payable and sccnied expenses
{Incrense) decrease in Joventory and othay
Increase {decrease) in customer depusits

Cash flows prowided by {ured in) operating activities

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Coniributions of capital aysets
Decrease in exuity {n East Bay Dischergers Authonty

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12

2013 2012
43,693,132 § 4§532,187
{14,853,479) {9.848,15R)
{13,983,330) (13,255,728)
(5.692,889) {5,15),590)

118,523 {99.191}
(448,284) (363,108)
(2,050) 1,017
8831,621 12,821,229
(3,306,5B6) (3,600,409)
4,324,628 10,773,551
{(986,604) (847.214)
(14,197,107, (19,001,891}
3,062,836 2,848,488
{11,102,833) {9,827.475)
271,737 221,93}
1,479,254 -
§7.040.000 (81.361,951)
(57,498,133) 78,755,000
1,292,858 {2,385,020}
(979,354) 608,734
1,622,106 1,013,372
643,752 % 1,622,106
643,752 8 1,508,810
- 113,296
643,752 % 1,622,106
{7.427.936) § 15.052.071)
16,776,307 16,796,277
190,019 (125,148)
{827.495) 1,256,648
1,205 51314
118,521 (99.191)
§831,621 § 12,821,229
4,009,985 § 1,538,284
8y,170 106,827






UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TQO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Enterpnee funds account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities are financad
primarily by user charges, and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar
lo the private sector. The acquisition and capital improvement of the physical plant facilitics requires that these
goods and services be financed from existing cash resources, cash flow from operations, the issuance of debl, and
contributed capital.

The District appties all appticable GASB pronouncemenis in sccounting and reporting for proprietary operations,
as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, except for those that conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Financial Accounting Siandards Board (FASB) Statements and
interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB} Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulleting (ARB’s) of
the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be conrisient with the current
year’s presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and have a maturity of three months or leas when acquired, to be cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2013 and
2012, cash equivalents consist of U.S. Treasury funds in a sweep account.

Certain cash and oash equivalents have been placed into escrow according to the requirements of ongoing
construction contracts.  Accordingly, such cash and cash equivaelents have been classified es restricted in the
accompanying financial statements.

Investments

Investments, which consist of short-term, fixed-income securihes at June 30, 2013 and 2012, are recorded at fair
value using quoted market prices. The related net realized and unrenlized gains (losses) on investments are
recognized In the accompanying statement of revenues expenses, and changes in net assels.

Certain investmenis have been placed into escrow according to the requirements of ongeing constlruclion
contracis. Accordingly, such inveshnents have been clessified as restricled n the accompanying financial
siatemnents.

Inventory

Inventory is held for consumption and is recorded a1 cost using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis.
Capital Asvets

Capital assets, including costs of addition lo utility plant and major replacements of property, arc capitalized and
stated at cost The District’s capitalization threshold is $10,000. Such capital costs include matesials, direct
tabor, transportation, and such indirect costs as interest and contracted engineering. Contributed property is
recorded as fair value as of the date of donation. Repairs, maintenance, and minor replacements of property are
charges to expense.

14






UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 340, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE il - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Classification of Revenues and Expenses

Opemating revenues consist primarily of sewer service charges to customers, which are billed and collected on
behalf of the District by Alemeds County (the County) as a separate component of semiannual property tax
billings. Property (axes are levied on March 1 end are due in equal installments on November 1 end February 1.
The County remits to the District those charges which are placed on the properly tax roll and handles all
delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties.

Nonoperating revenues consist of investment income and special charges that can be used for either operating or
capilal purposes,

Capital contributions consist of contributed capital assets, connection, and capacity fees thal are legally reswricted
for capital expenditures by State law or by Board actions that established those charges. Connection and capacity
fees represent & one-lime coatribution of resources to the District, imposad on conteactors and developers for the
purpose of financing capital improvements.

Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the District. Operating
expenses include costs related to wastewater collection and treatment, as well as engineering and general and
edministrative expenses. Other expenses such as investment losses, interest expense, and loss on retirement of
capital azsets are reported as non-operaling expenses,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make cstimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assete and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subseguent Events

Menagemeni has considered subsequent evenis through October 23, 2013, the date which the financial statements
were gvailable to be issued.

Change in Accounring Principles

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Fingacial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Pawtion. This Siatement provides financial reporling guidsnce for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of
Finuncial Statements, introduced and defined those elements as a consumption of net assets by the zovernment
that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the government that is
applicable to a future reponing period, respectively. Previous financial repotting standards do not include
guidence for reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinet from assets and liabilities.

Concepls Statement No 4 also identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a

statement of financial position. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statenents—and Management s Discussion and Analysis- -for Siate and Local

16






UNION SANITARY BISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the
employees of state and local govemmental employers through pension plans that are administered through trusts
that have the following characteristics:

e Contributions from employers and non-employer contributing entities to the pension plan and earnings on
those contribulions are irrevocable,

s Pension plan assets are dedicated to providing pensions to plan members in accordence with the benefit
terms.

= Pension plan assets are legelly protected from the credilors of employers, noo-employer contributing
entities, and the pension plan administrator. If the plan is a defined benefit pension plan, plan assels also
are Jegnlly protected from creditors of the plan members.

This Statemeni establishes siandards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred ouiflows of resources,
and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement
identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected
benefit paymenis to their actusrial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.

Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements aboul pensions also are addressed.
Distinchions are made regarding the parlicular requirements for employers based on the number of employers
whase employees are provided with pensions through the pension plan and whether pension obligations and
pension plan asseis are shared. Employers are clessgified in one of the following catepories for purposes of this
Statement:

s Single employers are those whoge employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through single-
employer pension plans—pension plans in which pensions are provided to the employees of only one
employer (as defined in this Statement),

=  Agent employers are those whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through agent
multiple-employer pensioa plans —pengion plang in which plan aesets are pooled for investment purposes
but separate accounts are maintamed for each individual employer so that each employer’a share of the
pooled assets is legally availabie to pay the benefits of only ils cmployees

e Cosi-sharing employers are those whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through
cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plans—pension plans in which the pension obligations 10 the
employees of more than one employer are pooled and plan assetz can be used to pay the benefits of the
employces of any employer that provides pensions through the pension plan.

[n addition, this Statement defails the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with liabilities
(payables) to a defined benefit pension plan and for employers whose employees are provided with defined
contribution pensions. This Statement also addresses circumstances in which a non-employer entity has a legal
requirement fo make contributions directly to 8 pension plan.

This Siatement is effective for fiscal years beginning afier June 15, 2014  Early implementation is encouraged.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #2 = CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitel asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is summarized as follows:

Balancz Balance
Juoe 30, 2012 Additions Delevicas Transfers June 3, 2013
Capital assets, not being deprecimted:
Land and improvements 3 5195913 § 198,026 $ - - 3 5,593,989
Cunstruction in progress 25,004,235 11,868,287 - (5,162,367) 31,800,155
Capactty Permit 6,043,632 - - - 6,043,632
Total Capitaf exsels, nx being depreviated: 36,553,710 12,066,313 N (5,162,367 43,437,716
Capitai assets, being deprociaied:
Sewnage collection Bscilitles 397,641,506 4,009,935 {693,690} 1,367,006 402.324,798
Sewago treatment facilities 160,543,832 - {56,051} 3.567,260 163,545,041
District facititles 39,932,719 365,913 (1,473,622} 151,936 39.177.008
Gencral equipment 3,969,586 83,525 {1,884 343) 76,165 4,247,033
Tetal Capital assets, being deprecisted: 604,087,703 4,661,515 (4,617,715) 5,162,367 609,293 880
Lesw: Accumulsied deprectation
Sewage colleotion facilities (200.014,215)  (9.828.694) 152,744 . (209,490,165)
Sewage tremtment facilition (84,045,740} (4,527,357 135,341 (88,417,256)
District facilities (15,761,064} {1,890,764) 075,116 - (16,676,712)
Geanersl equipment (4,231,008} 535,666 1,680,934 - {3,085,740)
Total Accumulated depreciation: {304,052,027) _ (15782,481) 3,144 635 - (317,689,873
Teral capitel asseta, being deprecinied , net 300,035,676 {12,120.956) {i,473,080) 5,162,387 291,604,007
Toml Copital Assots, nst 5 3363560446 5 (94,643) 3 (1.473,080) S - 5 3350170

Canstruction work in progress consists primarily of the direct construction costs associated with numercus
District projects plus related conmstruction overhead. Tbe District has outstanding construction contract
commitments on capital projects approximating $17,522,000 at June 30, 2013.
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #2 - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Cap1tal asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 is suromarized as follows:

Balance Balawce
June 39, 2011 Additions Deletions Transfers Jupe 30, 2012
Capial ansets, nol heing depreciated;
Land and impravements § 5395902 $% 1 S $ 3 5,395 903
Construction in progress 8,443,102 18,597,278 . {1.946,145) 25,094,235
Capacity Permit 6,043,632 . . - 6,043,632
Tasl Capital nssets, not being depreciated: 19,882,636 18,5972 - {1,946.14%) 36,333,770
Capital assety, being depreciatad;
Sewage collection facilitics I, 499,517 1,558,115 (1,447.072) 1,030 440 397,641,506
Sewage treatment focilities 160,060,088 . B 483,744 160,543,832
District facilities 39,302,338 322,301 (62,618) 370,508 39,912,779
Gonaral equipment 5,900,164 61,680 {53,705} 61,047 5,969,586
Tutal Capital ssscis, being deprecimed: 601,762,157 1,942,896 (1,563,495) 1,946,143 604,087,701
Less; Accumulated depreciation
Sewapge coflection Mcitities {191,520,043) {9.816,916) §322, T4 {200,014,215)
Sewage treatment facilitiea (79,51838T) (4,507,353} - (84,045,740)
District facililies (13,897,194) (1,921.482) 59616 1§3,761,064)
Genersl equipment (3,742,187) (543,526) 53,708 {4,231,008)
Tom! Accurnulated depreciation: ggsa,m,sl 5) _ (16,730,27 I 1,436,065 {304,052,027}
Totai capital asscts, heing deprecipied , net 313,064,342 {14,847,381) (127,430) 1,946, 145 300,035,676
Total Capital Assois, net $ 332946978 $ 3749898 % (127430) § $ 336,569,446
NOTE #3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
A. Summary of Cavh and Cash Equivalents and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents and investmenis at June 30 are detailed as follows:
2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 643,752 $ 1,508,810
Restricted cash and cash cquivelonts - 113,296
Investments 50,804,062 50,335,929
Restricted investments 10,000 20,000
Total Cash and Cash Equivalenls and Invesiments $51.457 814 $51,978,035
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED
B. Authorized Investnents by the District

The District’s igvestment policy and the California Government Code allow the Distriot 1o invest in the following
investments, with certein limiling provisions that eddress interest rate, risk, credit nsk, and concentration of
credit risk,

Maximum Minimum Max imivm Mazimum

Authorized Remaining Credit Perceniage  Investment
Investmant Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio  In One lssuer
U.S. Treasury Obligationg 5 vears N/A None None
U.S. Agency Oblipations (a) 5 years N/A None None
Bankers Acceptance (b) 180 days Al/P1 (ST) 40% 10%
A(LT)
Certificatea of Deposit 180 days WA 0% 10%
Negotiahle Cenificams of Depoail 5 years Al (ST) 0% 10%
A(LT)
Repurchase Agresments (c) 90 days NA 10% 10%
Commercial Paper 270 days  "Prime® guality 25% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A WA 70% Noae
Corporaie Notes (d) 5 years A 0% 10%
Morigage Pass-through and Asset Backsd Securilies N/A AAA or Aaa 20% 10%
Money Market Funds N/A AAA or Ass 20%, 0%

a) Securities issued by agencies sponsored by the federsl government such as the Federal Farm Credit Bank
{FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA),
and the Federal Home Loan Morigage Corporation (FHLMC}.

b} Bankers Acceptances issuad by institutions the short term obligations of which are rated at 8 minimum of
“P1™ by Moody's Investor Services (Moody’s) and Al by Standard & Poor’s, Inc. (S&P); or if the short
term obligations are unrated, the long-iesm obligations of which are rated a minimum of *A™ by S&P.

c) Repurchase agreements must be collateralized with [).S, Treasury Obligation or U.8. Agency Securities,
which must maintain & market value of at least 102% of the principal of the repurchase agreement.

d) Securities shall be issued by corporations rated a minimom of “A™ by S&P.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
inyesiment. Generally, the Jonger the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensilivity of its fair value to

changes in market interest rates.

information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by

maturity as of June 30:

) Matunties of
12 momhe or less  12-24 months 25 - 60 moaths Total

U.S. Trersury Obligations $ 2,004,140 § 2004063 § - 5 4018203
U.8. Agency Ohligations:

FHLB 4,033,740 - - 4,033,740

FNMA 231,956 1,997,300 2.929,2%6
Carporate Notes 4,264,164 1,576,605 - 5,840,769
Certificates of Depasit 1.228.401 720,316 - 1,948,217
LAIF 32,009,735 - - 32,009,735
Local Qovernmont Investment Pool (CAMP) 313,042 - 33,642

Total [nvestments 44,515,778 6,298,284 - 50.814,062
Cash in bank and money market funds 643,752 - - 641,752

Totsl Cash snd |lnvestments $ 45.159E530 $ 6&9284 $ - 551457814
1012 Manaritics af

12 monilis of teas  12-24 months 25 - 60 moaths Total

U8, Tresnuty Obligations $ 1,500885 3 2024688 § 2,001,100 $ 5,526,673
U.S. Agency Obligations:

FHLB - 4,068,120 - 4,068,120

FNMA - 1,937,833 1995 980 3,933,812
Intermationul Bank for Reconstruciion & Developmeni {{BRD) . 2,001,180 - 2,001,180
Corporate Motcs 10,527,454 2. 732752 13,260,206
Cerlilicules of Depoait 2,043,760 495,759 - 2,530,519
LAIF 18,992,835 - - 18.992,835
Local Govemment Invesiment Pool (CAMP) 33 583 - - 33,583

Tous! Investments 313,098,517 13,260,332 3,997,080 50 355,929
Cash in bank and money market funds i,622 106 - - 1,622,106

Total Cash end Invaitments ] 3-4]720|623 $ 13,260,332 $ 3997080 % 51,978035
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED
D, LAIF Pool

The District is & voluntary participant in the Local Agéney Investment Fond (LAIF). LAIF is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of Californin. The
District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value smount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value
of the pool share, The batance in available for withdrawal on demand, and is Based in the sccounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortlzed cost basis, Included in LAIF's invesiment porifolio are
collateralized mortgage obligations, morigage-hacked securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain
state funds, and floating rate securitiss issued by federal agencies, governmemt-sprmsored enterprises, United
States Treasury Notes and Bills and corporations. The carrying value of LAIF approximales fair value. At June
a0, 2013, these investments mature in an average of 278 days.

E. Credii Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.

This is measured by tho assignment of & mting by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2013 for each investment type:

Az A A Al A2 Toa)

US. Agency Ohligations

FHLB 40140 S - 3 - 8 L 4 - § 403,740

FHMA 2,925,218 - . . - 1.929.136
Corparsie Nows - 1726484 2,050,485 1,063,400 5 540,700
Local Uovernaeeni Investment Puol (CAMP} :u,gu1 . - . - B

Tonals [ ] % I - § 1;1154“ § a%-ﬂi 3 ! fﬁl& 12,537407

Exungt from crodit raie disclosus:

11 4. Treagury Obligations 4,018,203

{enificales of depneit 1LMENT
Nt mied

Cudifornia Locs) Agency Investment Fund 32,009,135
Cash and cash equhalents 752

Tona] Cash, Cah Egudvalents and Lnveatmaems 3 51;457:1!

Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2012 for each investment type:

Am And Aad Al P-1 “Joul

U 5. Ageney Obligs tona

PHLB H 4088,120 - 3 - % - 5 - § 4068120

FNMA 1933813 - B . . A9,
Imurnationa] Benk for Reconsiruciion & Developroent {THAD) 2001 180 - - - - 2001,180

Corporsic Notes - 904,138 577,443 4,078,655 2,499,600 132440 206
Local Governnent investment ool (CAME} 13533 - . - - 1350

Toils 51003669 5 9041M S S77TI813 3 4078655 1995910 23,294,902

Exempl from credn mis disclogure

U 8. Treasury Obiiyations 5.526,6T1

Cenificmes of deposit 1519519
Mot mated

CoMiforzia Locad Ageney Frrvesament Fynd 18,992,935
Cash and cash squinvalents 1,622 106

Tenal Cagh, Cash Equivslenia and Inveatmenls [ IIWS Q35
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #3 ~ CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED
F. Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a
single isauer.

As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District did nol have investments held that are more than five percent
of the District’s tota} investments.

G. Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits

Thie ig the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to . The District's
policy, as well as the California Government Code, requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool hetd by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securitics in the collateral pool must cqual at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies, California law also allows financial instilutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust dead
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of June 30,
2013, the District’s total bank balance of $929,934 was either collateralized or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Investments

This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities Lbat are in possession of an outside parly. The California
Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit
risk for investments. However, the District's policy states that all security transactions entered into by the
District shall be conducted on delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. All securities purchased or acquired shall
be delivered to the Disirict by book entry, physical delivery, or by third party custodial agreement as required by
CGC Section 53601, The collateralization on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreeiuents will adhere 1o the
amount required under CGC Section 53601(3) (2).
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #4 - JOINT VENTURES - CONTINUED

During fiscal year emded June 30, 2013 and 2012, the District was charged $1,060,693 and $1,100,381,
respectively, by EBDA primarily for operating costs. Such costs are included in the wastewater treatment
expenses by the Disirict for financial reportling purposes.

The financial sialement for EBDA may be obtained from the EBDA, 2651 Grant Avenue, San Lorenzn, CA
04580-1841.

NOTE #3 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Lang-term obligations at June 30, 2013 are summanzed as below:

Maintity lnieten Balence Balunce Curront

Date Rate A TEvS Additinns Retiremenis &30/13 Porlion
1994 Siam Revoiving Fund Loan . Plam Upgrade o&/1714  37% $ 1766492 § _ S i ASRSEA 8 1007804 § 1007804
2003 Swm Revotymg Fund Loon - Irviogian OR300 Ld% 8,372,390 641,227 B,689,163 699,624
2008 Stuie Reviiving Fund Loan . Willow 1127 1d% 1. 426,037 - 4 ) 6t 1,351,877 15,940
1008 Swma Revolving Fund Loon . Newark R 1% 81 324 . 424 Y06 9.1456,018 435,762
2008 Sume Revalving Fund i oan - fiekeh Hewhy 171728 2.7% 1. 83,640 - 49,775 1,794,865 9,172
A9 Swmte Revolving Fund Loan - ('cdar Blvd. @2e  1.5% 1821887 - &1 A5t 1,736,236 81 693
2011 Stare Revolving Fund Loan Prmoary CI. 01/1%1) 17 6,438,569 2,298 505 B B, 737074 351,650
2011 Smie: Reolving Fund Lnan . Subssation | neme  26% 2421,312 109,870 95,179 2,535 412 96,606
3011 Sume Revalving Fund Loan - Boyce Rd LRt Siavon 0V 6% 1913818 1,916,244 . 4,939 882 -
Cumpenasted sbaences L] na §38 381 UR7 744 915,034 913,281 915281

—Tiaa ___SILA _ DI3JEL 93281
S A0AS38T0 § 5312370 $ 4317600 541563612 S 4657372

A. 1994 State Revolving Fund Loan — Plans Upgrade

During 1994, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. As of June 20, 1997, §30,000,000, the maximum
loan amount, had been drewn. The interest raie on the loan is 2.7 percent and is payable in twenly annual
instaliments, beginning one year after the initial loan disbursement. The purpose of this loan was to finance the
Alvarado Wastewater Treaiment Plant Upgrade project.

B. 2003 State Revolving Fund Loan - Irvington

During 2003, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in eccordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. As of March 26, 2004, $14,301,057, the maximum
loan amount, had been drawn. The interest rate on the loan is 2.4 percent and is payable in twenty annual
installmenis, beginning on year after wnitial loan disbursement. The purpose of this loan was to finance the
Irvingion Equalization Storage Facilities project.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - CONTINUED

€. 2008 State Revolving Fund Loan — Willew

During 2008, the Districi entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interost rate on the loan is 2.4 percent and is
payabie in twenty annual insiallments, beginning one year aiter initial loan disbursement. The purpose of this
loan wes to finance the Willow/Central Avenue sanltary sewer rehabilitation project. The maximum amount of
this agreement ia $1,749,329 based upon projected costs to be inourred. As of June 30, 2013, $1,710,47] hae
been advanced under this agreement.

D, 2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - Neseark Pump Station

During 2008, the District entered intc a loan agreement with the Celifornia State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and is
payablo in twenty annual installments, beginning in 2011. The purpose of this loan was to finance the Newark
Pump Station project. The maximum amount of this agreement is $10,283,321 based upon projected coats to be
incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $10,283,322, the maximum loan amount, hes been advanced under this

agrecment.
E. 2008 Starte Revolving Fund Loan — Hetch Hetchy

During 2008, the Distriot entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one ysar after initial loan disburseinents. The purpose of this
loan is to fivance the lower Hetch Hetchy sewer rehabilitation project. The maximum amounl of this agreement
is $2,212,432 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $2,113,379 has been advanced
under this agreement.

K. 2009 Siate Revolving Fund Loan — Cedar Boulevard

During 2009, the District entered into a loan agreement with the Califomia State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the Stiate Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan iz 2.5 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual instaliments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements, The purpose of
this loan is to finance the Cedar Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The maximum amount of this
agreement 18 $2,052,841 based upon projected costs 1o be incurred. As of Junc 30, 2013, $1,998,384 has been
advanced under this agreement.

G. 2011 Srate Revolving Fund Loan — Primary Clarifier

During 2011, the District entered into 3 loan agreement with the California State Water Resouzces Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initiel loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the rchabilitation of primary clarifiers (Nos. ! through 4) at the Alvarado Wastewater
Treatment Plant. The maximum amount of this agreement is $8,821,860 based upon projecied costs to be
incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $8,821,860 has been advanced under this agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #15 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - CONTINUED
H. 2011 Siate Revolving Fund Loan — Substation 1

During 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance wilh the Stale Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.6 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the replacement of Substation 1 1o ensure its continual operation, The maximum amount of
this agreement is 52,676,485 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $2,412,908 has
been advanced under this agreement.

L 2011 Srate Revolving Fund Loan - Boyce Rd. Lifi Station

During 2011, the District entered into r loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accorndance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.6 percent and will
be payable in twenty snnual installments beginming one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the replacement of Boyce Road Lifi Station to ensure its continuel operation The
maximum amourt of this agreement is §6,196,671 based upon projected costs 1o be incurred.  As of June 30,
20113, 54,839,862 has been advanced under this agreement.

J.  Debt Service Requirements

Future annual repayment requirements as of June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Tota!
2014 § 3,742,291 5 214,710 3 4,557,001
2015 2,068,965 860,220 2,929,185
2016 2,121,980 816,084 2,938,004
2017 2,176,358 770,800 2,947,158
2018 2,232,134 724,341 2,956,475
2019-2023 12,173,656 2,913,894 15,087,550
2024-2028 0,926,186 1,585,314 11,511,500
2029-2033 6,037,707 469,790 6,507,497
2034 169,055 8,181 177,236

Totals § 40,648‘331 $ 8!963i334 § 49,61),665
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JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE %6 - PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

CAILPERS uses the Entry Age Normal Cost Method to value Plan obligations and the market related value
method of valuing the Plan’s assets. An investment rate of return of 7.5 percent is assumed, including inflation at
275 percent. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary by duration of service. Changes in liability due to
plan amendmenis, changes in actuarial assumptions, or changes in actuerial methods are amortized as a level
percentage of payroll on a closed basis over twenty years, Investment gains and losses ere tracked and amortized
over 30 years. Salaries are projected to increase from 3.20 percent 1o 14 20 percent depending on age, service,
and type of employment,

Funded Stanw; The schedule of funded status of the plan as of June 30, 201 1 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued lisbility (AAL) $ 94,015,409
Actuarial value of plan asseta 11,586,175
Unfunded actuarial uccrued liability (UAAL) 3 ]6.429!234
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 82.5%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 12,767,707
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 128.7%

Audited annua) financial stalements are available from CAYL PERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 04229.
2709.

NOTE #7 - OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS
A, Postemployment Healthcare Plan (OPEB)

Pian Description. The District's defined benefil postemployment healthcare plan provides medical benefits to
employees who satisfy the requirements for retirement under CalPERS (attained age SO with five years of service
or satisfaction of the requirements for a disability retirement) The amount of the retiree’s medical benefit is
dependent upon both years of service with the District and the year the employee retires.

The District contracts with CalPERS to administer its retiree health benefit plan (an agent multiple-employer
plan) and te provide an investment vehicle, the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Fund, to prefund
future OPEB costs. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by State stetute
within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The Distrigt chooses among the menu of benefit provisions and
adopta certain bencfit provisions by Board resolution. CalPERS issues a separale Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be oblained from the CalPERS Executive
Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814.

Funding Policy. The District’s annual required contribution of the employer (ARC) is an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the paramelers of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a leve! of
funding thet, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected 1o cover normal annual costs each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not o exceed 30 years oo a closed basis. The
cuirent ARC rate is 3.6% of the annual covered payroll, based on the most recent aciuarial report dated July 1,
201]1. The plan members receiving benefits currently do not make contributions,
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JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #7 - OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS - CONTINUED

The following is 8 summary of the acluarial assumptions and methods:

Veluation date July 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Entry age, Normal cost
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll
Amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return (funded) 6.75%
Salary increase 1.25%
Healthcare cost trend rate 9.0% initial; 4.5% ultimate
Inflation Rate 31.25%

B. 401(a) Plans

The Disinct sponsors three internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) money purchase retirement plans for
unclagsified employees throuph the ICMA Retirement Comoration. The plans were eatablished and can be
amended by Board resolution and, for certain terms, by participant agreement. Eligibility for participation in a
particular plan is dependent on job classification. Within each plan, participating ¢employces coatribute the same
doller amount, and the District makes matching contributions on their bebalf. The District and the participants
both contributed a total of $34,185 and $36,690 to the plans for the years ended June 30, 2013, and 2012,

respactively.
C. Deferred Compensation Plan

District employees may defer & portion of their compensation under a District sponsored deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Seotion 457. Under this plan, participants are not taxed
on the deferred portion of their compensation until distribution, Distributions may be made only at termination,
retirement, death. or, in an emergency, as defined by the plan.

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assete require plan assets to be held by a trust for the exclusive
benefit of plan paniicipants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these pians are not the District
asgets and are not subject to District control, they have been excluded from these gemeral purpose financial
statements.

NOTE #8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District 18 a8 member of the California Sanitation Risk Management Authonty (CSRMA). CSRMA covers
general liability and workers® compensation claims. In addition, commercial insurance is purchased for excess
lisbility, property, and employee dishonesty coverage. The District has a $500,000 deductible for general
ligbility coverage, and no deductible for workers® compensation coverage.

Claims and judgments, including a provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a foss is
decmed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed above, the
District has coverage for such claims, but it has retained the rigk for the deductible or uninsured portion of these
claims.

The District’s liability for uninsvred claims is limited 1o genetal liability claims, as discussed above.
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE #9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The District is contingently liable in ¢cormection with claims and contracts arising in the normal course of its

activities. District management is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a
significant effect on the financial position of the District.
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Schedule of Funding Progress for Pension Plan

Actuarial Avtcaris] Accrued UAAL aua
Valuation Date  Actoarial Value Liability (AAL) - Unfunded Funded Covered Percentage of
June 30, of Assets Entry Age AAL {UAAL) Ratia Payroll Covered Payroll
2011 § 71585175 3§ 94,015,400 S 16,429,234 82.5% 3 12,767,707 128.7%
2010 73,970,831 88,741,572 14,770,741 83.4% 12,301,216 120.1%
2009 70,450,768 83,558,837 13,068,069 84.4% 12,177,190 107.3%

Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health Benefit Plan

Actuarial UVAAL as s
Valuation Acmarial Velue Actuapial Accrucd  Uafupded AAL Covered Percentage of
Date of Assets Llshility (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Pryroll
July 1, 2011 § 2849311 § 6,557,147 § 3,707,836 43% $ 12,004,561 N
Suly 1, 2010 2202422 5,120,503 2.918,08] 43% 11,590,155 15.2%
July 1, 2003 - 5,201 583 5,201,583 0% 12,429,787 41.8%
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULES OF COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
Net capital assets 5 335,041,723 § 336,569,446
Leas long term debt:
State revolving fund (40,648 331) (39,630,289)
Net investment in capital assets 294,393,392 296,939,157
RESTRICTED
Expendable:
Capacity purposes 5 16,093,405 $ 15,123,448
Nonexpendable:
State revolving fund loan contingency requirement 4204415 4,222 930
Total reatrictod net assets $ 20,297,820 § 19,346,378
UNRESTRICTED
Renewal and replacement:
Structural 5 8,079,734 $ 10,704,257
Vehicle and equipment 1,150,234 1,173,450
Information system 1,368,371 1,269,037
Plant and pump stetion 158,524 110,992
Non-capital project expense (NECB) 310,580 306,956
Investment in Eest Bay Dischargers Authority 6,472,447 6,561,617
Risk management 1,500,000 1,500,000
Cash flow 15,139,823 14,595,065
Emergency 2,000,000 1,250,000
Pretreatment 112,797 110,339
Total unrestricted 5 36,292,510 § 37,581,713
NET POSITION 3 350,983,722 $ 353?6’7&48
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULES OF COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Note A — Restricted Components of Net Position

The amounts have lega! restrictions as to their uses. Those amounts restricied for capacity purposes can be used
oaly for acquisition of capacity related capital assets Those amounts restricted as bond reserve cen be used only

for debt service.
Note B - Unrestricted Compounents of Net Position

These amounis have been destgnated by Board resolution for various purposes including renewal and
replacement and a reserve for economic uncertainty.

8



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BEFORE DEPRECIATION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Salanes and wages
Employee benefits
Recroitment and development
Temporary help
Repairs and maintenance
Opcrating supplies
Office and safety supplies
Insurance
Contractual services
Professional services
Utlities
East Bay Dischargers Authonity -
operating charges
Non-capital projects
Sewer Service charge
adminigtrative fee
Rents/Lsages
Totai

2013 2012
Scwage Sowage
Scwage Collection &  General & Sewage Collestion & Generl &
Treamment _ Enpineering _Administrative Total Treaiment ineeri Administrative Tolal

$ 4,800,376 § 6282578 3 2981252 § 14,064,206 $ 4317109 3 35862154 % 2945441 513324704
1.918,094 2,645,861 1,574 478 6,138,433 1,707 279 2,382,945 1,439,396 5,529,620
89,445 68,160 196,330 383,935 79,764 B4 957 212,550 37727
- 10476 31,253 41,729 - 15,170 - 15,170
1,482,668 509,882 11,213 2,003,763 1,570,105 546,929 12,459 2,129,493
1,674,605 232,206 - 1,906,811 1,626,589 215,601 - 1,842,190
144,142 179,200 245880 569222 140,006 152,172 216,153 508,331
- - 222,425 222,425 - - 176,275 176,275
700,986 47514 10,569 759,069 673,834 40,278 10,334 724,446
168,316 35027 534.404 737,747 181,917 51.187 471,113 704,217
2,190,981 53,005 63,023 2,307,099 2,355,404 49.554 58,129 2.463,087
1,060,693 - - 1,060,693 1,100,381 - - 1,100,381
1,805,985 1,805,985 200,084 3,812,054 248.476 254,805 369.573 872,854
35,084 35,084 35,084 105252 34,983 34,983 34,982 104,948
17,554 19277 5,473 42,304 19.419 21,910 5413 46,742
516,088,920 $11954345 53 6111468 § 34,154,742 $ 14255266 5 9712645 § 5.951,818 520,819,729
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The District's insurance policies and coverages in effect at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Genera| liability (pooled liability program)
Bodily injury, property damage, and personal injury
Public entity errors and omissions and other related practices
Employment related praciices

Auto physical damage (primary insurance program)
Workers’ Compensation

Group Heslth and Life

Employee Disabitity and Salary Continuance

Property insurance, all property
Accounts receivable

Bmployee Dishonesty Bond Coverages:
Public Employee Dishonesty Bond
Forgery and alteration
Computer Fraud

40

E 25,500,000
$ 25,500,000
$ 25,500,000
Insured Vaiue

$ 3,290,105
3 1,750,000
Contract

Contract

$ 250,928,297
No sublimit

$ 1,000,000
5 1,000,000
g 1,000,000
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VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY
& COMPANY, LLP
Certified Public Accoyuntanis

VALUE THE DIFFEREMCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directars
Union Sanitary District
Union City, California

We have audited, in acenrdance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americe
and the standards applicable to financial eudits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the basgic financial statements of the Union Senitary District (the
District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the reiated notes wo the financial statements, and heve
issued our repont thereon dated October 23, 2013, Qur report includes & reference to other suditors who audited
the financini stetements of the East Bay Dischargens Authority, as described in cur report on the District's
financial statements. This ceport does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

L1 n Ov n

In planning and performing our audit of the financial matemenis, we considered the District’s internal control
over financigl reporting (internal control) to delermine the audil procedures thel are approprisie in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial siatements, but pot for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effecliveness of the District’s internal contral. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Districts’ internal control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fanctions, lo preveny or delect and carrect,
misstaternents on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in inlernal
control, such that there is 8 reasonable possibility thet a material misstatement of the entiry’s financial statcinents
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on e timely hasis, A significunr deficiency is a deficiency, or 8
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
1o merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to idenlify all deficiencies in internal control that inight be maicrial weaknesses or,
significent deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

i
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Compliance and Other Matfers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Distnict’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we per formed tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, end
grant agrecments, noncompliance with which could have a disect and material effect on the detennination of
finencial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulls of our tests disclosed na
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 10 he reported under Government Auditing
Standards

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to deseribe Lhe scope of our testing of mmternal control and compliance and the
results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or an
compliance. This reporl is en integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose

e . . .
%-wr,,“tl /r'.-.a.’ ‘D(:F C, T o

Pleasanton, California
October 23, 2013



VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY
& COMPANY, LLP
Certified Public Accountanss

VALUE THE BIFFCHENCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Direclors
Union Senitary District
Union City, California

Report on Com fo £

We have sudited Union Sanitary District’s (the Distriet) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
deacribed in the OMB Circulur A-133 Compliunce Supplement that oould huve a direct end materisl effect on each
of the District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013, The District’s major federal programs
are identified in the sunumary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings end
questioncd costs.

Mazagement's Responaibility

Management is responsiblo for compliance with ths requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion vn compliance for each of the District's major federad programs based
om our sudi! of the Lypes of compliance requirements referred to above, We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standarde generally accepted in the Unjted States of America; the slandards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; end OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governnents, and Non-Profit Organizations Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
sbout whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirernents referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on s major federal program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion on compliaace for each major federal
program, However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opivion oy Fach Major Federal Program

In our opinien, the District complied, in all matecizl respects, with the compliance requirements referred 1o above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federnl programs for the ycar ended June 30,
2013,

3
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R ngl Control Over Compliance

Mansgement of the Disirict 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internel comrol over
compliance with the Lypes of compliance requirciments referred to above. In planning and performing our andit,
we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direet and
material effect on & major federal program to detemrnine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
eircumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and rapont on tntemn! control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose
of cxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal contro! over compliance. Accordingly, we do nol
express an opinjon on the effectiveness of the Disirict’s 1ntemal control over comnpliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operabion of a control over compliance
does nol allow managemeni or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, 1@
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal comivol over compliance s 8 deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a rcasonable possibility that maierial
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevenied, or detected and
correcied, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal cantrol aver compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficienvies, in internal conirel over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than s material weaknest in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to inerit attention by those charged with povemance.

Our consideration of internal controi over compliance was for the limited purpose descnbed in the first paragraph
of this section and wes not designed 1o identify all deficiencies in intermal control over compliance that might be
mnaterig] weaknesses or significant deficiency, We did not identify any deficiencies in intermnal control over
compliance that we consider to be malerial weakuesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

Report on Schedule of Expeaditures of Federnl Awards R OMB Circular A-133

We have sudited the besic financial stalemems, including the related notes to the financial statements, of the
Union Sanitary District, ag of and for the year ended June 30, 2013. We issued our report thereon dated October
23, 2013, which contained unqualified opinions on those financial statements Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements thar collectively camprise the District's basic financial
slatemenis  The accompanying schedule of expenditurcs of federal swards is presented for purpases of additional
analysis as required by U 8. OfTice of Munagement and Budget Circular A-133, and is not a required part of the
basic finencial statements, Such infonpation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates dircctly 1o the underlying accounting and other reécords used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected o the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including compsaring and reconciling such infonnation directly to the
underlying accounting and othcr records used to prepare the financial stalements or ta the financial statements
themsclves. and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all malerial respecis in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

The purpose of this report on internal control over coinpliaice is salely to describe the scope of our Yesting of
internal controf over compliance and the results of that 1esting based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is nat suitable for any other purpose.

f
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Pleasanton. California
October 23, 2013



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federel
Catalog Federal
Federz] Grantor / Pass-through Grantor / Program Title Grant dentifying Number _ Number _Expenditures
Enviropmental Protestion Agency
Passed through State Water Resources Cantrol Board

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water Stare Revolving Funds " C-06-5222-110 66,458 $ 78338t
C-06-5221-110 66.458 109,879

C-06-5219-110 66,458 §,380,280

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2273,540

(1) Tested as a major program.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE #1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the ectivity of all federal awards
programs of the Union Sanitary District (District} The District's reporting entity is defined in Note #1 of the
District’s basic financial statements. All federnl awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federsl awards passed through other governmental agencies to the District are included in the accompanying
schedule,

Basi il

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note #! of the Diistrict’s basic financial statements,

elationship 1o ic Fi jat Stat

The joan associated with federal award funds is reported within the District’s basic financinl staternents under
the financial statement caption current ponion of long-term debt and long-term debt, net of current portion.

Relationship to Federal Financial Reporls

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal financial repons. However, certain federal financial reports are filed based on
cash expenditures. As such, cerlain timing differences may exist in the recognition of revenucs and
expenditures between the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the federa] financial reports.

E. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Numbers

The CFDA numbers included in this report were derermined based on the program name, review of grani
contract information, and the Office of Management and Budget's Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

F. Pass-Through Entities’ ldentifying Number

When federal awards were received from & pass-through enily, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
wards shows, 1f available, Lhe identifying number assigued by the pass-through entity.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's repart issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered o be material weaknessea?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal contro] over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified nol considered io be material weakneases?
Type of auditor’s repart issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with Circular
A-133, Section 510{a)

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Nymber ame of Federn] Pr lust

Capiralization Granis for Clean Water State
66.458 Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-tisk suditee?

Ungua]iﬁed

No
No
No

No
oge Reporiod.
UngEliﬁed

No

$300,000

No



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (1) A L

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Q NED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 302013

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

ol

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Qg?’{omm COSTS (CONTINUED)
0

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39,

11. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING - SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
2012-1 INVESTMENT PURCIIASES

Condition:
As of June 30, 2012, the District held in 1its wnvestment portfolio a securily issued by International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) with a market value of $2,001,180 maturing on March 5, 2014

Criteria:

The State of California Govermnent Code, Section 51601, lists the authorized investmenis for local governunent
agencies, With respect to agency sceurities, Section 53601 (f) allows mvestrnents in Federal agency or United
States povernment-sponscred enterprise obligations, participations, or other instruments, inciuding those 1ssued
by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United Siales povernment-sponsored
enterprises. IBRD is a supranational organization whose membership transcends national boundaries and is part
of the World Bank Group. IBRD is not a federal agency or a United States government-sponsored enterprise.

Cause of Condition:
Intemnal controls in place at the District failed to prevent a purchase of a security thet is not in compliance with the
State of California Government Code Section 53601 and the District’s Investment Policy.

Effect of Condition:
The District is not in complience with ns Invesiment Poliey and California Government Code Section 53601,

Recommendation:

We recommend the District inplement procedures and enhance current controls in place 10 ensure all investment
purchases arc in compliance with the District’s Investment Policy and Catifomis Government Code Section
53601.

Current Status:
Baseil on the audit procedures performed for the June 30, 2013 resulting in no instances of non compliance as it
relates lo California Government Code, Section 53601, This finding does not warrant further action.



Directors

Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers

Richard B. Currie
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’'Hara
Attorney

DATE: November 19, 2013

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of November 25, 2013
BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION FOR 2014

Recommendation

The Budget & Finance Committee will present their recommendation to the
Board.

Background

In 2000, the Board adopted Ordinance #44 (attached) stating that on January 1
of each year, Board member compensation shall be increased by the amount of
increase of the classified employees’ wages for the year. The Ordinance also
provides for the Board to review the compensation increase prior to it going into
effect on January 1. For the last ten years, Board members have voted not to
increase their meeting stipend.

The classified employee contract provided for an increase in 2013 of 3.5% to the
base salaries. The Bay Area Consumer Price Index (CPI-W) increased by 1.9%

from August 2012 to August 2013. The numbers for October were not available
as of November 19.

Attachment
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ORDINANCE #44
Directors' Compensation

1. Effective January 1, 2001, Directors of Union Sanitary District shall receive
a stipend in the amount of $198.00 _ for each day of service to Union Sanitary District
as authorized by Health and Safety Code Sections 4733 and 6489 as recently revised
by Senate Bill 1559-Kelly. This compensation will be pald for no more than six (6)
days of service per calendar month.

1I. On January 1 of each year thereafter Director compensation shall increase
by the same percentage as all increases in total compensation of Union Sanitary
District Classified Employees using the compensation of classified employees effective
January 1, 2001 as a basis of increases and $_198.00 per day of service as the basis
increases in Director stipends. In no event shall Director compensation exceed the
5% annual Increase permitted by Health and Safety Sections 4933 and 6489
compounded from January 1, 1987.

III. The Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District shall have the option of
reviewing compensation of Directors on an annual basis before the effective date of
any increase set forth in Section II, above.

IV. The compensation of Directors set forth above will be in addition to any
benefits currently provided to Directors or to be authorized and approved for sanitary
district directors in the future.

Adopted by the following vote on October 23, 2000:

AYES: Handley, Kite, Roberts, Toy
NOES: Wilkowsky

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT:

None
%M HANDLE-;, Chairpéo’n

. Board of Directors
I ‘{ UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Attest: 1§ i

,'( -},.“.‘ L e ;l." '{5
DANIEL 1. WILKOWSKY

Secretary, Board of Directors
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

A-USD8:BD-QRD1. 44

Adopted October 23, 2000
698
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Directors
Pat Gacoscos
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anijali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers

Richard B. Currie

General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara

Attorney

DATE: November 18, 2013
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Ric Pipkin, Senior Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem No. 11 - Meeting of November 25, 2013
Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with the
Covello Group for Providing Construction Management Services for the
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order
No. 2 with The Covello Group (Covello) in the amount of $1,095,490 for providing
construction management services for the Thickener Control Building Improvements
Project (Project).

The Project is budgeted in the Capacity and Renewal and Replacement Funds and the
District has applied for State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance in the amount of
$12.2 million from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).

Background

On May 16, 2013 staff executed an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 in the amount of
$22,912 with Covello to review the design of the Project for biddability and
constructability issues. Staff has reviewed Covello’s comments with the designer,
Carollo Engineers, who are currently addressing the comments in the preparation of the
final design package for bidding purposes.

The bid opening for the Project is scheduled for January, 2014. Pending approval from

the State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance Program and award by the Board, staff
anticipates the issuance of the Notice to Proceed in March, 2014.
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Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of November 25, 2013
Page 2

The scope of the Project is as described below:

e Demolition of the existing Thickener Control Building.

e Construction and demolition of temporary above grade pipelines to reroute flows
around the Thickener Control Building.

e |Installation of six new VFD-driven progressing cavity sludge pumps with
associated piping and instrumentation

e Construction of a shelter/access platform to all thickeners, the flow splitter
structure, and scum pits

¢ Installation of new Thickened Primary Sludge yard piping from the Thickener
Control Building to HMB Nos. 1, 2, and 3.

e Replacement of obsolete primary scum pumps Nos. 1-4 at Sludge Pump Rooms
1and 3

e Construction of a new electrical room, adjacent to the existing Paint Shop
Building, and replacing and relocating power and PLC controls from the
Thickener Control Building and Heating & Mixing Building (HMB) No. 3 to this
new electrical room

¢ Replacement and relocation of the electrical and instrumentation equipment from
HMB Nos. 1 and 2 to the existing Gas Booster Room within HMB No. 1. The
existing gas booster room will be converted for use as an electrical room.

e Replacement of PLC 20 at HMB No. 4

e Replacement of rectifiers and anode beds for existing cathodic protection
systems at the Thickener Control Building

Task Order No. 2 — Construction Management Services

The Project will require the services of a construction management consultant that is
knowledgeable about the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant and its operating staff.
This is needed due to the complex contract constraints and construction sequence that
will allow construction to take place while the existing facilities remain in operation.
Staff selected Covello for construction management services for the Project due to the
operational complexity of constructing the project and because Staff has been pleased
with their past work on the Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project, Substation No.1
Replacement Project, Headworks Improvements Project, and the Cogeneration Project.
By utilizing the same Covello construction management staff as other previous projects,
staff believes this will provide the best team to oversee the construction of the Project
due to the anticipated difficulties in the bypass of critical sludge systems and outages of
the major processes and electrical systems.

The scope of services for Task Order No. 2 will include the facilitation of a partnering

workshop and a preconstruction conference, construction administration, facilitation of
progress meetings with the contractor, processing of construction documents between
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Agenda Iltem No. 11
Meeting of November 25, 2013
Page 3

the contractor and the design consultant, field quality control, coordination of field
testing and training, and project closeout inspection and paperwork.

The State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance requires the District to take several
steps to ensure compliance with the Davis Bacon wage requirements required for
federally funded projects. These requirements include establishing the appropriate
labor wages for the project prior to bidding the project and reviewing certified payroll
reports from the contractors and interviewing contractor employees to verify
compliance. Covello will provide the necessary expertise and manpower to support this
compliance program and will coordinate it to minimize impact on the construction using
a sub-consultant with expertise in administering this type of labor compliance program.
Covello is utilizing RGM and Associates who have provided this service on previous
District projects.

Covello will be providing services to write the Lock-Out Tag-out (LOTO) Standard
Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the affected existing and new equipment in the
project. The District is required to have a written SOP on how to LOTO all of its
equipment. Because the Covello staff will be highly familiar with the equipment during
the construction, staff has decided to utilize Covello to meet this need. District staff will
remain responsible for the final review and approval of the SOPs.

The costs of Task Order No. 2 are as follows:

Description Amount

Covello Construction Management Costs $961,352
Subconsultants:

e Electrical Support $34,000

e Materials Testing and Special Inspection $25,550

e Labor Compliance Consultant $50,000

e 5% Mark-up on Subconsultants $ 5478

Subconsultant Total $115,028

Other Direct Costs $19,110

Project Firm Cost Ceiling $1,095,490

Task Order No. 2 includes a firm ceiling on total costs of $1,095,490. This equates to
11.1% of the estimated construction costs for the Project of $10 million. The duration of
the Project’s construction phase is 26 months. As a comparison, the final cost of
construction management services for the Newark Pump Station Upgrade Project was
$1,166,925.67, or 11.6% of the construction cost of $10,051,210. The Newark Pump
Station Upgrade Project was designed to be constructed over a 24-month period. USD
staff have reviewed this price proposal and found it to be reasonable, considering the
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required scope of work. All work under this task order is expected to be completed by
June 30, 2016.

Total Costs for this Agreement are summarized in the table below:

Description Total
Task Order No. 1 Biddability and $22 912
Constructability review of Clarifier Project ’
;\I’/Iask Order no. 2 (.?onstruction $1.095.490
anagement Services
Total for this Agreement $1,118,402

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order
No. 2 with The Covello Group in the amount of $1,095,490 for providing construction
management services for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project.

RBC/RC/RP;mp

Attachment: Task Order No. 2
Exhibit A Plant Map
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Thickener Control Building Improvements Project

800-394

TASK ORDER NO. 2
TO
AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
AND
THE COVELLO GROUP, INC.
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Dated May 16, 2013

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Task Order is to provide construction management services for
Project Number 800-394, Thickener Control Building Improvements Project.

2. PROJECT COORDINATION

Ric Pipkin will be the Project Manager for the District

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Scope of Services associated with this Task Order is described in Exhibit A.

4. DELIVERABLES

The Engineer shall provide the deliverables as defined in Exhibit A.

5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement. The cost
ceiling shall be $1,095,490. Engineer’s multiplier shall be a maximum of 2.96 for the
rates and personnel proposed for the Project. A summary of the anticipated
distribution of cost and manpower is shown in Exhibit B.

The following table summarizes all task orders and amendments executed and proposed
under the Agreement:

Page 1 of 2
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800-394
Board
Task Order / Amendment Not to Exceed Author.lzatlon District Staff
Amount Required? Approval
(Yes/No)
Task Order No. 1 —
Biddability and $22,912 No Jesse Gill
Constructability Review
Proposed Task Order No. 2 $1,095,490 Yes Richard Currie
Total $1,118,402

6. TIME OF COMPLETION

The estimated schedule is in Exhibit A. and is subject to the conditions of Article 3 of the
Agreement. It is currently anticipated that work under this Task Order will be
completed by June 30, 2016.

7. KEY PERSONNEL

Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order are as follows:

Role Key Person to Be Assigned
Principal/Project Manager Bruce Presser
Construction Manager Mike Redig

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order No.
1 as of November , 2013 and therewith incorporate it as part of the Agreement
dated May 16, 2013.

DISTRICT ENGINEER
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT THE COVELLO GROUP, INC.
By: By:

Richard B. Currie Bruce Presser

General Manager

Date: Date:

Page 2 of 2

Page 98 of 164



APPENDIX A
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
THE COVELLO GROUP, INC. - SCOPE OF WORK

I. PARTNERING WORKSHOP:

1.

Covello will organize the agenda for the half-day (1/2) day workshop to be conducted the same
day as the Preconstruction Conference.

Prior to the workshop Covello will contact key members of each organization to discuss their
specific project concerns and objectives.

Covello will prepare and issue the agenda prior to the workshop. Covello will facilitate the
workshop in accordance with the agenda. Covello will facilitate the workshop and all
discussions as a group.

After the workshop, Covello will prepare a Record of Discussion (ROD) containing
information and any agreements developed at the workshop. This will be distributed to each
individual attendee within five (5) business days after the workshop.

The District will provide the following for the workshop:
a. The meeting room arranged so that individuals can sit comfortably at tables set up in a
U-shape facing a projection screen.
b. A projection screen and projector.

Covello will provide the following for the workshop:
a. Easels with flip charts, markers and masking tape.

One member of the District, Design Consultant, and Contractor will be asked to briefly present
specific Project information prior to starting the Rocks-in-the-Road portion of the workshop.
Any graphics or visuals are welcomed. A set of plans and specifications at the workshop is
also helpful. This helps with dealing with the specific “rocks” and issues that are discussed

II. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE:

1.

Preconstruction Conference: Covello will prepare the agenda for the meeting, facilitate the
meeting, address administrative and non-design issues, and prepare record of discussions of the
meeting for distribution.

Partnering Workshop: Covello construction manager will attend the partnering workshop.

Administration & Office set-up: Covello will setup the files for the project prior to
commencement of construction.

III. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

1.

Construction Administration

a. Project Coordination: Covello will act as the project coordinator and the point of contact for
all communications with the Contractor. Covello will coordinate the activities of the
District, Design Consultant (DC) and Contractor.

b. Document Tracking System: Covello will establish, implement and maintain a system for
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tracking all correspondence and documents on the project.

Construction Administration Services: Covello will provide administrative and management
services. Covello will receive all correspondence from the Contractor and will address all
inquiries from the Contractor and all construction related correspondence. The DC will be
responsible for providing any design input.

2.  Meetings

a.

b.

Covello will prepare the agenda for the progress meetings and other construction meetings
required during the project.

Covello will facilitate and prepare the record of discussions for the progress meetings and
other construction meetings.

3. State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Coordination

a.

Covello will retain RGM to implement the District’s Labor Compliance Program (LCP) to
provide all reporting, documentation and oversight for this Project as required by the SRF
and the LCP.

Covello will assist in providing the District with any required documentation from the
Contractor and Project to comply with the provisions of the SRF.

4. Submittals

a.
b.

Covello will establish, implement and coordinate the submittal processing.

Covello will receive the submittals from the Contractor and check the submittals for general
conformity with the Contract requirements. If obvious deficiencies are apparent in the
submittal, Covello will send the submittal back to the Contractor for correction.

Covello will route the submittal to the DC for review and will route the reviewed submittal
back to the Contractor. Covello will review comments on submittals to determine if
additional follow-up with the contractor is warranted and to identify prospective scope
changes.

Covello will maintain a log and tracking system for submittals. Covello will track the status
of submittal review with the DC and the status of shop drawing resubmittals with the
Contractor.

The DC will review all design related submittals. The DC will review all submittals for
temporary facilities.

4.  Clarification Processing

a.
b.

D Qoo

Covello will establish, implement and coordinate the system for processing clarifications.
Covello will receive all requests for information (RFIs) from the Contractor and determine if
the request is a valid RFI; if not, Covello will return the RFI to the Contractor.

Covello will provide a response to the Contractor for any administrative and general RFIs.
Covello will route all other RFIs to the DC at their home office.

The DC will review RFIs and provide design response.

Covello will review the DC’s response, verify acceptability of response and transmit the
Clarification Response to the Contractor. If the response materially affects the design, it will
be reviewed with the District and/or the DC, as necessary, to verify that it is required. If itis
required, Covello will issue a change request.

Covello will maintain a system for logging and tracking RFIs. Covello will track the status
of RFI review with the DC.

The DC will prepare Design Clarifications where design issues are identified by Covello, the
DC, or the District. Covello will prepare the Clarification Letter for transmittal to the
Contractor of the DC’s Design Clarification and other clarifications.

5.  Change Order Preparation, Negotiation & Processing

a.

The DC will prepare design details for change requests.
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b.

Covello will prepare and issue the change request to the Contractor with the appropriate
design documents.

Covello will prepare an independent cost estimate and/or verify the acceptability of the
Contractor’s cost proposal for each change request. The DC’s input may be requested for
specific equipment and material costs.

In the event the Contractor encounters a time sensitive problem where time is not available
to negotiate a settlement, Covello will issue a field order. All work done under a field order
will be completed on a time and material basis. Covello will have authority for issuing field
orders to a maximum value of $2,500 without prior notice or approval from the District only
if Covello can’t reach the District’s Representative via cellular phone or office phone. As
soon as practical dependent on field conditions, Covello will advise the District of the
issuance of such field order, and the District will execute the field order. Field orders with
an allowance greater than $2,500 will be reviewed and approved with the District prior to
issuance.

Covello will review change orders with the District prior to initial and final negotiations with
the Contractor.

Covello will prepare change orders for execution by the District and Contractor.

Covello will implement and maintain a system for logging and tracking changes.

Covello will establish and maintain Issues Files. The issues files will compile all data
related to specific items that arise that may have cost or time impacts.

6.  Progress Payment

a.

Covello will review the initial cost breakdown prepared by the Contractor. Covello will
review and process the progress payment requests as required in the Contract Documents
and by the California Public Contract Code.

Covello will verify the quantity and acceptability of stored materials.

Covello will verify the Contractor’s construction progress as it relates to the progress billing
procedure.

Covello will perform the administration, preparation and processing of the monthly progress
payments.

Covello will prepare the summary cover sheet for the progress payments which will be
executed by Covello, the Contractor, and the District.

When and if requested by the District, State or other agency or public inquiry, Covello will
collect but not review the certified payroll from the Contractor.

7.  Scheduling

a.

Covello will review and work with the Contractor in the development of the initial Baseline
schedule. Covello will review and work with the Contractor in their review and preparation
of the schedule updates. Covello will provide written comments to the Contractor on the
Baseline and update schedules.

8.  Field Quality Control

a.

b.

Covello’s office/field engineer will monitor the contractor’s compliance with the Contract
Documents.

Covello office/field engineer will prepare a daily report documenting field activities, field
crews, Contractor equipment, and field problems.

No time is currently included in the budget for overtime monitoring of construction
operations.

Covello will maintain a Corrective Work Item List. The list will provide a current inventory
of required corrections to aid in timely completion of such items.

Covello will provide photographic documentation of the project prior to construction.
Covello will provide and maintain photographs of field activities for status monitoring of the
project.
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10.

f.

Covello will monitor the record documents on a monthly basis to determine if they are being

maintained by the Contractor.

Covello will contract with a separate firm to furnish the material testing and special

inspections specified in the Contract Documents to be furnished by the District for the

Project.

1. Covello will schedule and coordinate the specialty inspections and material testing.

2. Covello will have oversight responsibility for the specialty inspections and testing
services.

3. Anallowance is included in the Budget in Exhibit B for this work. Covello will review
Consolidated Engineering Laboratories scope of work and budget with the District prior
to executing their agreement. The scope of work and actual costs will be dependent on
the final design requirements and the Contractor’s operations. An amendment to this
Task Order may be necessary if the allowance is not adequate to cover the actual work
required.

i. Compaction grout material testing per Specification Section 02253-3.04.B has been
included in the material testing scope. No provisions have been included in the
scope of work or budget for special inspections of the compaction grouting.

Covello will retain Beecher Engineering to provide technical support and assistance on the

electrical facets of the project. Beecher Engineering will be available to support electrical

system shutdowns and provide the following project support:

1. Review change requests from the project’s electrical sub-contractor as required and
provide an analysis and opinion on first the merit of the request and second, the accuracy
of the costs.

2. Site inspection/meetings as required to review proposed electrical equipment installation
and conduit routing.

No provision has been included in the scope of work or budget for observation, testing and

handling of hazardous material.

No provisions have been included in the scope of work or budget for the services of a

corrosion consultant to perform special inspection and/or testing for the Cathodic Protection

Systems as required by Specification Section 13115.

Means and Methods of Construction
a. Covello will not have responsibility for directing the means and methods of construction. The

Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means and methods of construction.

Safety

a.

Covello will comply with appropriate regulatory, project and District regulations regarding
necessary safety equipment or procedures used during performance of Covello’s work and
shall take necessary precautions for safe operation of Covello’s work, and the protection of
Covello’s personnel from injury and damage from such work.

Neither the professional activities of Covello, nor the presence of Covello’s employees or
sub-consultants at the construction/project site, shall relieve the Contractor and any other
entity of their obligations, duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to,
construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for performing,
superintending, or coordinating their work in accordance with the Contract Documents,
District regulations, and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory
agencies. Covello and its personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any
Contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or any health or
safety precautions.

Covello will follow the District’s confined space procedures for entry into any existing
District confined spaces and will follow these procedures at its own risk. Covello’s reliance
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on the District’s fixed gas detection system will be at its own risk.

11. Testing & Training

a.
b.
C.
d.

e.

The scope and budget do not include Covello’s participation in factory witness testing.
Covello will coordinate training requirements and activities.

The DC will provide design assistance during testing operations if determined necessary by
the District.

Covello will work with the Contractor, Design Consultant and the District on the
development of the Startup Plan.

Covello will provide oversight and administration of training and testing.

12. Corrective Work Item List

a.
b.

Covello will prepare the Corrective Work Item list with input from the District and DC.
Covello will confirm that the items identified in the Corrective Work Item list are completed
in preparation for issuance of the Substantial Completion Certificate.

Covello will prepare the Substantial Completion Certificate for execution by the District and
Contractor when the Corrective Work Items are completed to the District’s and Covello’s
satisfaction.

13. Final Inspection and Punchlist

a.

b.
C.
d.

Final Inspection

1. Covello will have primary responsibility for conducting the final inspection.

2. The District will participate and provide input on the final inspection.

3. DC will provide design input on final inspection items if determined necessary by the
District.

4. Covello will have oversight and final review responsibility for the final inspection.

Covello will prepare the list of outstanding deficiencies.

Covello will prepare and issue the punchlist(s) from the list of deficiencies.

Covello will have primary responsibility for verifying that punchlist work is complete.

14. Warranty Coordination

a.
b.

Covello will maintain a warranty file.

Coordination of warranty work after the Contract Period is not included in this Scope of
Work or budget. If the District determines at a later date that it desires Covello to provide
this service and an amendment is issued for additional budget, Covello will coordinate
warranty work with the District and Contractor during the warranty period.

15. Project Closeout:

a.

b.

Covello will prepare necessary District documentation recommending acceptance of the

completed work by the Board.

Covello will turnover project documentation to the District in an orderly manner. Covello

will retain all issue files at the end of the project. The District shall have the right to request

review and/or copies of the issue files.

Covello shall have full and complete access available to all files created by Covello during

the Project for up to ten (10) years after the completion of the Project. Such access shall

include the right to copy any and/or all such files at Covello’s expense.

Covello will develop Lock-Out-Tag-Out (LOTO) Standard Operating Procedures (SOPSs) for

the new and modified equipment included in the Thickener Control Building Improvements

Project.

1. The District will provide the template and the software and/or computer necessary to
develop the SOPs in the special format requested by the District.

2. Covello’s development and work product shall be considered DRAFT and it is the
responsibility of the District to review, determine the accuracy of, and incorporate into
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their operations.

16. Dispute Resolution:
a. Resolution, when possible, of routine disagreements through the normal efforts of the day-
to-day project site staff will be performed.
b. Dispute resolution services using third parties or special processes (e.g. Mediation,
Arbitration, Mini-Trials. Dispute Consultants), or those requiring extraordinary efforts by
Covello are not included in this Scope of Work. If such non-routine dispute resolution
services are required, either an amendment or a separate task order will be executed.

17. Construction Manager’s Trailer
a. Covello will furnish the Construction Management trailer. Covello will furnish the copier,
internet service, and cleaning services for the field office under the Cogeneration Project
through September 2014. After September 2014 the field office costs will be billed to the
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project.
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Exhibit B
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT - THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
The Covello Group, Inc. - Staff Effort and Budget Estimate for Construction Management Services

Hours Rate Amount Mar-14 | Apr-14 | May-14 | Jun-14 | Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 | Nov-14 | Dec-14 | Jan-15 | Feb-15 | Mar-15 | Apr-15 | May-15| Jun-15 | Jul-15 | Aug-15| Sep-15| Oct-15 Nov-15 | Dec-15 | Jan-16 | Feb-16 | Mar-16 | Apr-16 | May-16 | Jun-16
Covello Construction Management Team
Principal B.Presser 192 | § 217 $41,664 24 24 24 24 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Construction Manager M.Redig 1,580 | $§ 152 $240,160 20 20 20 20 20 40 40 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 60 80 80 60 40 40 40 20 20
FE-OE Z. Downing 4,480 | $ 121 $542,080( 160 160 160 | 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160 160
LOTO SOP Allowance Z. Downing 200 | $ 121 $24,200
Administrative Assistant P.Freitas 688 [$ 88 $60,544 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 32 32
Covello Subtotal 7,140 $908,648
Escalation $47,704
Partnering |M.Jaeger LS $5,000
Covello Total $961,352
Subconsultants
Electrical Support |T.Beecher 200 | $ 170 $34,000
Materials Testing/Special Inspection - CEL Allowance $25,550
RGM - Labor Compliance Allowance $50,000
Subconsultant Total $109,550
Markup on Subs(5%) $5,478
Subconsultant Total $115,028
Other Direct Costs Months
Trailer 218 250 $5,250 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Internet 21]1$ 160 $3,360 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Copier 21| $ 350 $7,350 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Cleaning Service 211$ 150 $3,150 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
ODC Total $19,110
TOTAL ESTIMATE $1,095,490
Notes & Assumptions: Total Estimated % 11.1%
Construction Cost Estimate: $9,900,000 TCG Estimated % 9.7%
NTP: 3/3/2014 $1,118,402
Construction Period (CDs): 780
Substantial Completion: 4/21/2016
Closeout: 8 weeks
1. Covello's rates include all office expenses for home office telephone, facsimile, computers, in-house reproduction, travel in the Bay Area in personal vehicles.
2. Covello will furnish a trailer for the CM staff under the COGEN project through 9/30/14.
3. Covello annually adjusts salaries in July for the fiscal year from July thru June. The estimate assumes a 4% escalation on July 1, 2014 and 2015.
4. Extraordinary expenses, such as travel outside of the Bay Area, outside reproduction, delivery services, conferenc calls, etc. are invoiced at cost.
5. Covello charges for one-way Bay Area travel for work involving less than eight hours billed in one day.
6. Subconsultants are invoiced at cost plus five percent.
7. Todd Beecher's support is specific to CM related activities, no scope or budget is included for design support during construction.
8. Covello's development of LOTO Standard Operation Procedures (SOPs) are considered DRAFTs and shall be reviewed and accepted by USD for incorporation into their operations.
9. USD to provide the software and/or computer in order to complete the LOTO SOPs.
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Directors

Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Richard B. Currie

General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: November 18, 2013
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Ric Pipkin, Senior Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem No. 13 - Meeting of November 25, 2013
Authorizing the General Manager to execute an Agreement and
Task Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic
Vulnerability Assessment

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement
and Task Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability
Assessment

Background

Fiscal year 2014 budget identified a project for staff to conduct a seismic vulnerability
assessment for all District structures and major pipelines.

Staff identified 84 structures currently operated and maintained by the District and has
selected 41 major pipelines for assessment. These pipelines range from 18 inches to
60 inches in diameter and are critical to the District’s ability to convey and provide liquid
treatment of wastewater from Irvington Pump Station to the Alvarado Wastewater
Treatment Plant and then to receiving waters.

Staff requested and received three proposals from firms with expertise in structural and
seismic engineering. The firms were Rizzo and Associates; Wiss, Janney, Elstner
Associates; and Degenkolb Engineers. Staff selected Degenkolb Engineers due to their
proposed approach of categorizing and simplifying the analysis of the structures, and
their experience working with other local water and wastewater utilities including Central
Contra Costa Sanitary District and the Alameda County Water District.
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Scope of Work

The following summarizes the scope of work staff has negotiated with Degenkolb to
conduct this assessment:

Task 1 — Document Review

Staff has sorted over 500 drawings for review by Degenkolb to aid their analysis.
Degenkolb will also perform some site visits to familiarize themselves with the structural
elements of several of the buildings.

Task 2 — Define Seismic Performance Criteria

In order to determine the probabilistic seismic hazard and/or scenario for seismic
vulnerability assessment, Degenkolb will perform the following activities:

e Meet with ACWD and USD to determine level of expected water service
available and consequent wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal needs
after a major earthquake

e Consult with similarly sized wastewater facilities to understand expectations on
level of service

¢ Define consequence of failure for each structure and pipeline with USD staff

Task 3 — Tier 1 Seismic Evaluation of 20 Representative Structures to Life-Safety
Performance Level

Degenkolb will perform a preliminary seismic evaluation of 20 representative structures
and determine seismic deficiencies, expected downtime and potential losses. Provide a
seismic rating score for each of the structures for a given seismic hazard and
performance level.

Task 4 — Seismic Evaluation of Pipelines

Degenkolb will review the pipeline geotechnical environments and identify damage
mechanisms. Degenkolb will assess vulnerability due to wave propagation, liquefaction,
and settlement, and develop preliminary recommendations

Task 5 — Geotechnical Assessment

Degenkolb’s geotechnical sub-consultant will review existing soils information and
create a technical assessment for use in the pipeline and structure seismic analysis.
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Task 6

— Seismic Risk Analysis

Degenkolb will perform a risk analysis based on the likelihood of occurrence from
seismic evaluations in tasks 3, 4, and 5 and consequence of failure from task 2.
Degenkolb will conduct a District Board and/or Executive Team Workshop to review
potential service criteria for seismic performance, review seismic risk score for each
facility and discuss cost and service implications of conceptual seismic improvements.

Task 7

— Seismic Assessment Report

Degenkolb will prepare a draft and final report including findings, seismic upgrade
recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and planning-level cost estimates.

Task 8 (Optional) — Additional Seismic Evaluations of Structures

This task may include analysis of a portion or all of the first 20 representative structures
at a higher performance level than life-safety or a different level of seismic hazard. The
type of analysis and the structures analyzed shall be determined later. Degenkolb will
not commence work on this task without written authorization from staff.

The budget for this work is summarized in the following table:

Task Description Cost
1 Document Review $8,940
2 Define Seismic Performance Criteria $8,040
3 Tier 1 Seismic Evaluations Of 20 Representative Structures To $55,825

Life-Safety Performance Level

4 Seismic Evaluation Of Pipelines $12,690
5 Geotechnical Assessment $10,080
6 Seismic Risk Analysis $7,330
7 Seismic Assessment Report $3,625
8 Optional Task - Additional Seismic Evaluations of Structures $41,869
Total not including optional task $106,530
Total including optional task $148,399

USD staff have reviewed this price proposal and found it to be reasonable, considering
the required scope of work. All work under this task order is expected to be completed
by June 30, 2014.
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Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Agreement

and Task Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability
Assessment

RBC/SG/RC/RP;mp

Attachment: Agreement and Task Order No. 1
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Seismic Vulnerability Assessment
Project No 300-415
AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
AND
DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS
FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT MADE AS OF NOVEMBER,___ 2013, BETWEEN
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as District), and
DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS (hereinafter referred to as Engineer).
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, District intends to perform a Seismic Vulnerability Assessment of its
Facilities (hereinafter referred to as Project), and,

WHEREAS, District requires certain professional services in connection with the
Project (hereinafter referred as Services); and

WHEREAS, Engineer is qualified and prepared to provide such Services;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, the

parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER

1.1 Specific Services and the associated scope of services, payment,
schedule, and personnel will be defined in specific Task Order as
mutually agreed by District and Engineer.

1.2 All Task Orders will by reference incorporate the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, and become formal amendments hereto.

ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION

2.1 Compensation for consulting services performed under this Agreement
shall include:
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Direct labor costs, multiplied by an agreed upon fixed factor
(the Multiplier), to compensate for fringe benefits, indirect
costs, and profit.

Non-labor direct project charge not included in the fixed factor
and acceptable, without any markup.

Subconsultant costs, with a maximum markup of 5%.

Definitions are as follows:

(@)

(e)
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Direct labor is salaries and wages paid to personnel for time
directly chargeable to the project. Direct labor does not
include the cost of Engineer's statutory and customary
benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, and medical
and retirement benefits nor the cost of the time of executive
and administrative personnel and others whose time is not
identifiable to the project.

Fringe benefits include Engineer's statutory and customary
benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, medical and
retirement benefits, incentive pay, tuition, and other costs
classified as employee benefits.

Indirect costs are allocations of costs that are not directly
chargeable to a specific engagement and are commonly
referred to as Engineer’s overhead. Indirect costs include
provisions for such things as clerical support, office space,
light and heat, insurance, statutory and customary employee
benefits, and the time of executive and administrative
personnel and others whose time is not identifiable to the
Project or to any other project. Under no circumstances can
the same labor costs be charged as direct labor and also
appear at the same time as indirect costs, and vice versa.

The Multiplier is a multiplicative factor which is applied to
direct labor costs, and compensates Engineer for fringe
benefits and indirect costs (overhead) and profit.

Other non-labor direct project charges shall be included in the
overhead and these charges include typical expenses as cost
of transportation and subsistence, printing and reproduction,
computer time and programming costs, identifiable supplies,
outside consultant’s charges, subcontracts, and charges by
reviewing authorities.”
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2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7
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Alternatively, the District and the Engineer may agree to utilize the
fully-encumbered hourly rates and fees for Services performed by the
Engineer. These hourly rates and fees shall be based on the
Engineer’s rate schedule published at the time this Agreement or Task
Order is executed and shall be attached to each applicable Task
Order.

Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the prevailing Internal
Revenue Service’s standard mileage rate.

A Cost Ceiling will be established for each Task Order which is based
upon estimated labor-hours and cost estimates. Costs as described
above, comprising direct labor, overhead cost, and other direct costs,
shall be payable up to a Cost Ceiling as specified in the Task Order. A
Maximum Fee Ceiling, or Task Order Firm Ceiling, will also be
established for each Task Order which includes the Cost Ceiling plus
the Professional Fee.

Engineer shall invoice District monthly for the actual costs incurred,
and a pro-rated portion of the Professional Fee for work performed
during the previous month. If the Maximum Fee Ceiling is reached, the
Engineer will complete the agreed-upon work for the Maximum Fee
Ceiling. With District staff approval, labor hours may be reallocated
within the tasks without renegotiation in such a manner so as not to
exceed the Maximum Fee Ceiling.

The Engineer shall provide the District with a review of the budget
amounts when 75 percent of the Cost Ceiling for any task has been
expended. Engineer may request a revision in the Cost Ceiling for
performance of this Agreement, and will relate the rationale for the
revision to the specific basis of estimate as defined in the Scope of
Services. Such notification will be submitted to the District at the
earliest possible date. The authorized Cost Ceiling shall not be
exceeded without written approval of the District.

The Professional Fee will not be changed except in the case of a
written amendment to the Agreement which alters the Scope of
Services. District and Engineer agree to negotiate an increase or
decrease in Cost Ceiling and Professional Fee for any change in
Scope of Services required at any time during the term of this
Agreement. Engineer will not commence work on the altered Scope of
Services until authorized by District.

Direct labor rates are subject to revision to coincide with Engineer’s
normal salary review schedule. Adjustments in direct labor rates shall
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not affect the firm ceiling without prior written authorization of the

District.

2.8 District shall pay Engineer in accordance with each Task Order for
Services.

29 Engineer shall submit monthly statements for Services rendered.

District will make prompt monthly payments in response to Engineer's
monthly statements.

ARTICLE 3 - PERIOD OF SERVICE

3.1 Engineer's services will be performed and the specified services
rendered and deliverables submitted within the time period or by the
date stipulated in each Task Order.

3.2 Engineer's services under this Agreement will be considered complete
when the services are rendered and/or final deliverable is submitted
and accepted by District.

3.3 If any time period within or date by which any of the Engineer's
services are to be completed is exceeded through no fault of Engineer,
all rates, measures and amounts of compensation and the time for
completion of performance shall be subject to equitable adjustment.

ARTICLE 4 - DISTRICT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

District will do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of
Engineer.

4.1 Provide all criteria and full information as to District's requirements for
the services assignment and designate in writing a person with
authority to act on District's behalf on all matters concerning the
Engineer's services.

4.2 Furnish to Engineer all existing studies, reports and other available
data pertinent to the Engineer's services, obtain or authorize Engineer
to obtain or provide additional reports and data as required, and furnish
to Engineer services of others required for the performance of
Engineer's services hereunder, and Engineer shall be entitled to use
and rely upon all such information and services provided by District or
others in performing Engineer's services under this Agreement.
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4.3 Arrange for access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter
upon public and private property as required for Engineer to perform
services hereunder.

4.4 Perform such other functions as are indicated in each Task Order
related to duties of District.

4.5 Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this
Section.

ARTICLE 5 - STANDARD OF CARE

5.1 Engineer shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in
the performance of the Services as is ordinarily provided by a
professional Engineer under similar circumstance and Engineer shall,
at no cost to District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy the
foregoing standard of care.

ARTICLE 6 - OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE

6.1 Since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials,
equipment or services furnished by others, or over contractors',
subcontractors' , or vendors' methods of determining prices, or over
competitive bidding or market conditions or economic conditions,
Engineer's cost estimate and economic analysis shall be made on the
basis of qualification and experience as a professional engineer.

6.2 Since Engineer has no control over the resources provided by others
to meet contract schedules, Engineer's forecast schedules shall be
made on the basis of qualification and experience as a professional
Engineer.

6.3 Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual

project costs will not vary from his cost estimates or that actual
schedules will not vary from his forecast schedules.

ARTICLE 7 - SUBCONTRACTING

71 No subcontract shall be awarded by Engineer until prior written
approval is obtained from the District.

ARTICLE 8 - ENGINEER-ASSIGNED PERSONNEL
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8.1 Engineer shall designate in writing an individual to have immediate
responsibility for the performance of the services and for all matters
relating to performance under this Agreement. Key personnel to be
assigned by Engineer will be stipulated in each Task Order.
Substitution of any assigned person shall require the prior written
approval of the District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If
the District determines that a proposed substitution is not responsible
or qualified to perform the services then, at the request of the District,
Engineer shall substitute a qualified and responsible person.

ARTICLE 9 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

9.1 All work products, drawings, data, reports, files, estimate and other
such information and materials (except proprietary computer programs,
including source codes purchased or developed with Engineer monies)
as may be accumulated by Engineer to complete services under this
Agreement shall be owned by the District.

9.2 Engineer shall retain custody of all project data and documents other
than deliverables specified in each Task Order, but shall make access
thereto available to the District at all reasonable times the District may
request. District may make and retain copies for information and
reference.

9.3 All deliverables and other information prepared by Engineer pursuant
to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect to this project.
They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by
District or others on extensions of this Project or on any other project.
Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by Engineer for the
specific purpose intended will be at District's sole risk and without
liability or legal exposure to Engineer; and District shall indemnify and
hold harmless Engineer against all claims, damages, losses, and
expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from such
reuse. Any such verification or adaptation will entitle Engineer to
further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by District and
Engineer.

ARTICLE 10 - RECORDS OF LABOR AND COSTS

10.1 Engineer shall maintain for all Task Orders, records of all labor and
costs used in claims for compensation under this Agreement. Records
shall mean a contemporaneous record of time for personnel; a
methodology and calculation of the Multiplier for fringe benefits and
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indirect costs; and invoices, time sheets, or other factors used as a
basis for determining other non-labor Project charges. These records
must be made available to the District upon reasonable notice of no
more than 48 hours during the period of the performance of this
Agreement.

10.2 After delivery of Services (completion of Task Orders) under this
Agreement, the Engineer's records of all costs used in claims for
compensation under this Agreement shall be available to District's
accountants and auditors for inspection and verification. These
records will be maintained by Engineer and made reasonably
accessible to the District for a period of three (3) years after completion
of Task Orders under this Agreement.

10.3 Engineer agrees to cooperate and provide any and all information
concerning the Project costs which are a factor in determining
compensation under this Agreement as requested by the District or
any public agency which has any part in providing financing for, or
authority over, the Services which are provided under the Agreement.

10.4 Failure to provide documentation or substantiation of all Project costs
used as a factor in compensation paid under Article 2 hereof will be
grounds for District to refuse payment of any statement submitted by
the Engineer and for a back charge for any District funds, including
interest from payment; or grant, matching, or other funds from
agencies assisting District in financing the Services specified in this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE

Engineer shall provide and maintain at all times during the performance of the
Agreement the following insurances:

11.1 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for
protection of Engineer's employees as required by law and as will
protect Engineer from loss or damage because of personal injuries,
including death to any of his employees.

11.2 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. Engineer agrees to
carry a Comprehensive Automobile Liability Policy providing bodily
injury liability. This policy shall protect Engineer against all liability
arising out of the use of owned or leased automobiles both passenger
and commercial.  Automobiles, trucks, and other vehicles and
equipment (owned, not owned, or hired, licensed or unlicensed for
road use) shall be covered under this policy. Limits of liability for
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Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less than
$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit.

11.3 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance as will protect Engineer
and District from any and all claims for damages or personal injuries,
including death, which may be suffered by persons, or for damages to
or destruction to the property of others, which may arise from the
Engineer's operations under this Agreement, which insurance shall
name the District as additional insured. Said insurance shall provide a
minimum of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit coverage for personal
injury, bodily injury, and property damage for each occurrence and
aggregate. Such insurance will insure Engineer and District from any
and all claims arising from the following:

1. Personal injury;
2. Bodily injury;
3. Property damage;
4. Broad form property damage;
5. Independent contractors;
6. Blanket contractual liability.
11.4 Engineer shall maintain a policy of professional liability insurance,

protecting it against claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or
omissions of Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, in an amount of not
less than $1,000,000. The said policy shall cover the indemnity
provisions under this Agreement.

11.5 Engineer agrees to maintain such insurance at Engineer's expense in
full force and effect in a company or companies satisfactory to the
District. All coverage shall remain in effect until completion of the
Project.

11.6 Engineer will furnish the District with certificates of insurance and
endorsements issued by Engineer's insurance carrier and
countersigned by an authorized agent or representative of the
insurance company. The certificates shall show that the insurance will
not be cancelled without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to
the District. The certificates for liability insurance will show that liability
assumed under this Agreement is included. The endorsements will
show the District as an additional insured on Engineer’s insurance
policies for the coverage required in Article 11 for services performed
under this Agreement, except for workers’ compensation and
professional liability insurance.

11.7 Waiver of Subrogation: Engineer hereby agrees to waive subrogation
which any insurer of Engineer may acquire from Engineer by virtue of
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the payment of any loss. Engineer agrees to obtain any endorsement
that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of the District for all work performed by the
Engineer, its employees, agents and subconsultants.

ARTICLE 12 - LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

Having considered the risks and potential liabilities that may exist
during the performance of the Services, and in consideration of the
promises included herein, District and Engineer agree to allocate such
liabilities in accordance with this Article 12. Words and phrases used
in this Article shall be interpreted in accordance with customary
insurance industry usage and practice.

Engineer shall indemnify and save harmless the District and all of their
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, demands,
or causes of action of every name or nature to the extent caused by
the negligent error, omission, or act of Engineer, its agents, servants,
or employees in the performance of its services under this Agreement.

In the event an action for damages is filed in which negligence is
alleged on the part of District and Engineer, Engineer agrees to defend
District. In the event District accepts Engineer's defense, District
agrees to indemnify and reimburse Engineer on a pro rata basis for all
expenses of defense and any judgment or amount paid by Engineer in
resolution of such claim. Such pro rata share shall be based upon a
final judicial determination of negligence or, in the absence of such
determination, by mutual agreement.

Engineer shall indemnify District against legal liability for damages
arising out of claims by Engineer's employees. District shall indemnify
Engineer against legal liability for damages arising out of claims by
District's employees.

Indemnity provisions will be incorporated into all Project contractual
arrangements entered into by District and will protect District and
Engineer to the same extent.

Upon completion of all services, obligations and duties provided for in
the Agreement, or in the event of termination of this Agreement for any
reason, the terms and conditions of this Article shall survive.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, Engineer’s liability for
Districts damage will not exceed the aggregate compensation
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received by Engineer under this Agreement or the maximum amount of

professional liability insurance available at the time of any settlement
or judgment, which ever is greater.

ARTICLE 13 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Engineer undertakes performance of the Services as an independent contractor
and shall be wholly responsible for the methods of performance. District will
have no right to supervise the methods used, but District will have the right to
observe such performance. Engineer shall work closely with District in
performing Services under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

In performance of the Services, Engineer will comply with applicable regulatory
requirements including federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, orders,
codes, criteria and standards. Engineer shall procure the permits, certificates,
and licenses necessary to allow Engineer to perform the Services. Engineer
shall not be responsible for procuring permits, certificates, and licenses required
for any construction unless such responsibilities are specifically assigned to
Engineer in Task Order.

ARTICLE 15 - NONDISCLOSURE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Engineer shall consider all information provided by District and all drawings,
reports, studies, design calculations, specifications, and other documents
resulting from the Engineer's performance of the Services to be proprietary
unless such information is available from public sources. Engineer shall not
publish or disclose proprietary information for any purpose other than the
performance of the Services without the prior written authorization of District or in
response to legal process.

ARTICLE 16 - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

16.1 The obligation to continue Services under this Agreement may be
terminated by either party upon seven days written notice in the event
of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with
the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party.

16.2 District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend
performance thereof for District's convenience upon written notice to
Engineer, and Engineer shall terminate or suspend performance of
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Services on a schedule acceptable to District. In the event of
termination or suspension for District's convenience, District will pay
Engineer for all services performed and costs incurred including
termination or suspension expenses. Upon restart of a suspended
project, equitable adjustment shall be made to Engineer's
compensation.

ARTICLE 17 - UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES

171 Neither District nor Engineer shall be considered to be in default of this
Agreement if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to
uncontrollable forces, the effect of which, by the exercise of reasonable
diligence, the nonperforming party could not avoid. The term
"uncontrollable forces" shall mean any event which results in the
prevention or delay of performance by a party of its obligations under
this Agreement and which is beyond the control of the nonperforming
party. It includes, but is not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, storms,
lightening, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, inability to
procure permits, licenses, or authorizations from any state, local, or
federal agency or person for any of the supplies, materials, accesses,
or services required to be provided by either District or Engineer under
this Agreement, strikes, work slowdowns or other labor disturbances,
and judicial restraint.

17.2 Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if
nonperformance is due to uncontrollable forces which are removable
or remediable, and which the nonperforming party could have, with the
exercise of reasonable diligence, removed or remedied with
reasonable dispatch. The provisions of this Article shall not be
interpreted or construed to require Engineer or District to prevent,
settle, or otherwise avoid a strike, work slowdown, or other labor
action. The nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable time of
being prevented or delayed from performance by an uncontrollable
force, give written notice to the other party describing the
circumstances and uncontrollable forces preventing continued
performance of the obligations of this Agreement. The Engineer will be
allowed reasonable negotiated extension of time or adjustments for
District initiated temporary stoppage of services.

ARTICLE 18 - MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 A waiver by either District or Engineer of any breach of this Agreement
shall not be binding upon the waiving party unless such waiver is in
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writing. In the event of a written waiver, such a waiver shall not affect
the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach.

18.2 The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this
Agreement, or the occurrence of any event rendering any portion or
provision of this Agreement void, shall in no way effect the validity or
enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Agreement. Any
void provision shall be deemed severed from the Agreement and the
balance of the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the
Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be
void.

ARTICLE 19 - INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION

19.1 This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 13, together with all Task
Orders executed by the undersigned, is adopted by District and
Engineer as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the
Agreement between District and Engineer. This Agreement
supersedes all prior  agreements, contracts, proposals,
representations, negotiations, letters, or other communications
between the District and Engineer pertaining to the Services, whether
written or oral.

19.2 The Agreement may not be modified unless such modifications are
evidenced in writing signed by both District and Engineer.

ARTICLE 20 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

20.1 District and Engineer each binds itself and its directors, officers,
partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns and legal
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the
partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns, and legal
representatives of such other party, in respect to all covenants,
agreements, and obligations of this Agreement.

20.2 Neither District nor Engineer shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights
under or interest in (including, but without limitation, monies that may
become due or monies that are due) this Agreement without the written
consent of the other, except to the extent that the effect of this
limitation may be restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under
this Agreement. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent
Engineer from employing such independent engineers, associates, and
subcontractors as he may deem appropriate to assist him/her in the
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performance of the Services hereunder and in accordance with Article
7.

20.3 Nothing herein shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to
anyone other than District and Engineer.

ARTICLE 21 — NOT USED

ARTICLE 22 - EXCEPTIONS

No exceptions.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this
Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS
By: By:
Richard B. Currie Name:
General Manager Title:
Date: Date:
Page 13
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TASK ORDER NO. 1
to
AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

AND
DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS

FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dated NOVEMBER , 2013

1. PURPOSE
This Study will assess the seismic vulnerability risk of major District
facilities including treatment plant, pump station, and major pipeline
structures.

2. PROJECT COORDINATION
All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the
District’s Project Manager, Ric Pipkin.

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The task numbers in this Scope of Services are associated with the cost
data presented in Exhibit A.

Task 1: Document Review

e Research and review district documents (drawings and reports)
e Perform site visits
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Task 2 - Define Seismic Performance Criteria

e Determine probabilistic seismic hazard and or scenario for seismic
vulnerability assessment

o Meet with ACWD and USD to determine level of expected water
service available and consequent wastewater collection, treatment,
and disposal demand after a major earthquake

e Consult with similarly sized wastewater facilities to understand
expectations on level of service

¢ Define consequence of failure for each structure and pipeline with
USD staff

Task 3 - Tier 1 Seismic Evaluations Of 20 Representative Structures To
Life-Safety Performance Level
e Perform preliminary seismic evaluations of 20 representative
structures and determine seismic deficiencies, expected downtime
and potential losses. Provide a seismic rating score for each of the
structures for a given seismic hazard and performance level.

Task 4 - Seismic Evaluation Of Pipelines

Review plans/profiles

Review pipeline geotechnical environment

Identify damage mechanisms

Review and assess pipe materials

Assess vulnerability - wave propagation, liquefaction, settlement
Develop preliminary recommendations

Task 5 - Geotechnical Assessment
e Research and review district documents (drawings and reports)
¢ Research and review USGS, CGS, ACWD, Fremont, Hayward and
Union City geotechnical documents
e Create technical assessment for use in pipeline and structure
seismic analysis

Task 6 - Seismic Risk Analysis

e Perform risk analysis based on likelihood of occurrence from
seismic evaluations in tasks 3, 4 & 5 and consequence of failure
from task 2

e Conduct a District Board and/or Executive Team Workshop to
review potential service criteria for seismic performance, review
seismic risk score for each facility and discuss cost and service
implications of conceptual seismic improvements.
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Task 7 - Seismic Assessment Report
e Provide a draft written report with findings, seismic upgrade
recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and planning-
level cost estimates.
e The Final report shall incorporate and respond to District comments
on the Draft report.

Optional Task 8 — Additional Seismic Evaluations of Structures
e This task may include analysis of a portion or all of the first 20
representative structures at a higher performance level than life-
safety or a different level of seismic hazard. The type of analysis
and the structures analyzed shall be determined later. Engineer
shall not commence work on this task without written authorization
from District.

4. DELIVERABLES

The Engineer shall submit a detailed Draft and Final report of its findings.
The report is expected to include copies of the calculations performed,
maps, charts, and figures created for the analysis and a table
summarizing seismic assessment risk scores and planning level cost
estimates. The report should include an executive summary with seismic
upgrade recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and
planning-level cost estimates. The Final report shall incorporate and
respond to District comments on the Draft report.

The Engineer shall submit the final (reports, technical memoranda, and
bid documents in both Word and .pdf formats; drawings in the latest
AutoCAD version; other deliverables required for the project) to the District
on a CD-ROM.

5. NOT USED

6. NOT USED

7. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the
Agreement. The not-to-exceed amount of Task Order No. 1 shall be
$148,399. Engineer shall only proceed with Optional Task No. 8 with prior
written authorization from the District. The billing rate schedule is generally
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comparable to a labor multiplier of approximately 3.22. A summary of the
anticipated distribution of cost and manpower between tasks is shown in
Exhibit A.

The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed
task orders and amendments under the Agreement:

Not to Board
Task Order / Authorization | District Staff
Exceed .
Amendment A Required? Approval
mount
(Yes/No)
Proposed Task Order
No. 1 — Study Phase $148,399 Yes Richard Currie
1
Total | $148,399

6. TIME OF COMPLETION
All work defined in this Task Order shall be complete within two hundred

(200) calendar days after the execution of this Task Order and subject to
the conditions of Article 3 of this Agreement.

9. KEY PERSONNEL

Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order No. 1 are as follows:

Role Key Person to be Assigned
Project Manager/Structural Lead Roger Parra
Pipeline Expert Don Ballantyne
Geotechnical Expert Dave Mathy

Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of
the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task
Order No. 1 as of November___, 2013 and therewith incorporate it as part of the
Agreement.

DISTRICT ENGINEER

Union Sanitary District DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS
By: By:

Name: Richard B. Currie Name:

Title: General Manager Title:
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Directors

Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Richard B. Currie

General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara

Attorney
DATE: November 18, 2013
MEMO TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14 — Meeting of November 25, 2013

Upcoming Workshops Calendar
Recommendation
None.
Information

For your planning purposes, we wanted to give you some advanced notice of upcoming
workshops. We will also send notices as we get closer to the actual dates.

February 3, 2014 Mid-Year Budget Workshop

April 21, 2014 Main FY 2015 Budget Workshop
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Check No.
152357

152305

152241

152237

152251

152298

Date
111412013

111472013
111472013
11/772013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
117712013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
1/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013

11/7/2013

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

11/02/2013-11/15/2013
Invoice No. Vendor Description
9251 OWEN EQUIPMENT SALES 1 EA MODEL 2115 VACTOR JET RODDER
28695.1 CREDIT FOR ASPHALT RECYCLER DEMO UNIT
28695 ASPHALT RECYCLER DEMO UNIT
20130927.1 SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES  SRF LOAN #C065053110 - WILLOW/CENTRAL
20130927.2 SRF LOAN #C065045110 - LOWER HETCH
800400.6 ANDERSON PACIFIC ENG CONSTINC  THICKENER CONTROL BLDG INTERIM INPROV
800374.14 THICKENER 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION
800273.25 PRIMARY CLARIFIERS 1 - 4 REHABILITATION
128645 ALFA LAVAL ASHBROOK SIMON-HART 2 GBT 2 AND 3 OVERHAUL KITS
131060 CAROLLO ENGINEERS DEWATERING PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
131057 THICKENER CONTROL BLDG INTERIM INPROVEMENTS
131056 THICKENER CONROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE Il
131058 LIFT STATION #1 IMPROVEMENTS
131059 HEADWORKS ODOR CONTROL IMPROVEMENTS
131130 COGENERATION PROJECT
131131 COGENERATION PROJECT
7547641932 ROYAL WHOLESALE ELECTRIC PLC PROCESSOR UPGRADE
7547640529 4 4MB CONTROLLERS & 1 2MB CONTROLLER
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Invoice Amt

$454,772.12
$-3,138.22
$3,138.22
$108,384.73
$139,633.70
$62,471.00
$54,965.58
$114,240.26
$98,063.34
$3,586.92
$926.80
$9,970.38
$4,679.99
$2,912.31
$6,199.10
$41,344.01
$181.00

$27,880.20

Check Amt
$454,772.12

$248,018.43

$221,676.84

$98,063.34

$69,618.51

$28,061.20



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013
Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152375 11/14/2013 727891 VALLEY OIL COMPANY 4,474 GALS UNLEADED 10% ETHANOL GAS $14.081.05 $24,572.81
1 1 2,990 GALS CLEAR DIESEL
11412013 727892 $10,401.76
152262 11/7/2013  671039C DELTA DENTAL SERVICE OCTOBER 2013 DENTAL $21.585.10 $24,328.81
171201 1
11/7/2013  671039A OCTOBER 2013 DENTAL $2.760.71
152289 11/7/2013 9401204 CITY OF NEWARK 2013 NEWARK OVERLAY PROJECT #1040 $23.068.10 $23,068.10
152358 1171412013 140120131104 PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC SERV TO 11/03/13 IRVINGTON PS $28.60 $21,944.16
11/14/2013 898220131030 SERV TO 10/29/13 FREMONT PS
$277.02
11/14/2013 380420131030 SERV TO 10/28/13 CHERRY ST PS $172.82
11/14/201 1 1311 ERV TO 11/04/13 BOYCE RD
3 013720131105 SERV TO 11/04/13 BOYCE RD PS $2.201.70
11114/2013 892820131030 SERV TO 10/29/13 HAYWARD MARSH s124.84
11/14/2013 761520131024 SERVICE TO 10/23/13 NEWARK PS
$18,835.77
11/14/2013 096020131030 SERV TO 10/29/13 CATHODIC PROJECT $57.93
11/14/2013 666720131030 SERV TO 10/29/13 PASEO PADRE PS .
11/14/2013 224720131022 SERV TO 10/21/13 CS TRAINING TRAILER $28.08
152332 11/14/2013 20131021 CASA CASA MEMBERSHIP DUES FOR FY 2014 $18.720.00 $18,720.00
152265 1117/2013 79196 FOLGER GRAPHICS 115,165 COLOR BROCHURES $16.067.17 $16,867.17
152297 11/7/2013 16907 AMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT HAYWARD MARSH REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 5253375 $16,603.75
1177/201 1 MIDTOWN DEV MENT SEWER EVALUATIO
12013 6898 T EVELOP! EWI LU N $10,991.25
11/7/201 169 LOCAL LIMITS & WASTEWATER TREATABILITY
2013 04 s $3,278.75
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013
Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt

152372 111412013 533620131022 US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM MONTHLY CAL CARD STMT - OCT 2013 $16,085.78 $16,065.78
152287 1/7/2013 20130726 NASSCO MASTER TRAINER NASSCO PIPE CONDITION REPORTING TRAINING s1267500 51267500
152306 11/7/2013 581740 UNIVAR USA INC 4,890 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2.300.31 $11,639.87

11/7/2013 582368 4,896 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2:303.14

11/7/2013 58274 5,013 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2.968.17

11/7/2013 582082 4,887 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2.208.90

11/7/2013 581398 5,058 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2,370.35
152285 11/7/2013 24810354 MOTION INDUSTRIES INC ASTD BEARINGS $140.70 $11,231.02

117712013 24810697 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS FOR EFFLUENT SCREEN OVERHAUL $11.000.32
152278 11/7/2013 9017358010 KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. 7.64 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE 515078 S1041077

1/7/2013 9017358675 7.79 DAY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE $5,255.99
152340 11/14/2013 55190011 EMA INC PLANT DMZ SERVICES $0.803.14 $9,803.14
152280 1/7/2013  37432220131101 LINCOLN FINANCIAL GROUP LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - NOV 2013 $7.964.26 $7,364.26
152366 11/14/2013 901444403 SIEMENS WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 1,486 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE $6,899.20 $6,899.20
152351 11/14/2013 40291 JACK DOHENY SUPPLIES, INC. VACTOR RENTAL - 9/24 - 10/713 $6.474.60 $6,474.60
152281 11/7/2013 8343 LOOKINGPOINT INC LOOKINGPOINT CONSULTING TIME BLOCK $6,000.00 $6,000.00
152353 11/14/2013 90173591286 KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. 7.84 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE $5.280.72 $5,280.72
152246 117712013 447 AUTOMATED NETWORK CONTROLS SCADA / PLC PROGRAMMING SERVICES $5.160.00 $5,160.00
152369 11/14/2013 130618 TOTAL WASTE SYSTEMS INC OCTOBER 2013 GRIT DISPOSAL $4.038.62 $4,938.62
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152370 11/14/2013 583747 UNIVAR USA INC 5,009 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2.356.30 $4,710.71
R

11/14/2013 583283 5,005 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE $2.354.41
152360 11/14/2013 838440 POLYDYNE INC 41,060 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-539 4.675.01 $4,675.91
152238 11/7/2013 5085402 ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY 5 APC SMARTUPS $4.462.13 $4,462.13
152248 11/7/2013 42046 BAY AREA HIGH REACH INC SCAFFOLDING FOR THE BOARDROOM LEDS $4.400.00 $4,400.00
152250 11/7/2013 11201975 BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS  RAS PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS $4.244.15 $4,244.15
152235 11/7/2013 913118 AIRSIS, INC. PTS INTERFACE PROGRAMMING SERVICES $3.575.00 $3,875.00
152329 11/14/2013 358203 BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC. 4487 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE $2.420.87 $3,804.37

DIUM HYDROXIDE
11/14/2013 358204 2564 LBS SODIUM HYDROX $1.383.40
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152336 11/14/2013 54256689 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE $381.45 $3,303.24
E
11/14/2013 54249874 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVIC $283.82
1114/2013 54254424 ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS $102.47
11/14/2013 54249875 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE
4120 8 $366.84
11 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE
4/2013 54252164 LA $428.96
11/14/2013 54254422 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE $271.50
11/14/2013 54249876 ASTD DUST MOPS & TERRY TOWELS $66.36
11/14/2013 54254423 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE
$322.41
11/14/2013 54254425 RANGE IES
2544 30 ORANGE BEAN s928.17
1114/2013 . 54256688 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE
$271.02
1114/2013  54247612.0 UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE
$-60.00
11114/2013 54252163 UNIFORAM LAUNDERING SERVICE
$271.50
11114/2013 54256665 1 SAFETY VEST - JOHNSON, E $61.98
11/14/2013 54256667 2 JACKETS - JOHNSON, E
$166.75
152257 11/7/2013 7015 COMPETITIVE RESTAURANT CONCEPT REFUND # 16768 $3.300.00 $3,300.00
172013 7 KAR MON YAU EFUND # 16772
152312 1177120 022 MO REFUN| $3,300.00 $3,300.00
152308 11712013 20131101 VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA NOVEMBER 2013 VISION STMT $3.186.04 $3,186.04
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152271 117712013 3G7756 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS  ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS 24 $3,181.30
1 7 1 EA ADAPTER
117712013 3G7605 $15.51
ASTD PA ATE|
11/7/12013  3G7646 STD PARTS & MATERIALS $2,685.45
152309 11/7/2013 26384 VOX NETWORK SOLUTIONS INC PHONE SYS MAINT NOV 13-JAN 14 $2.673.40 $2,873.40
152343 111472013 9264101172 GRAINGER INC ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS $264.67 $2,727.84
11/14/201 5195 1 EA STENCIL MAKER
1 3 926059 S $2 17225
/ \
11142013 9263080245 1 EA CHAIR, BLACK s280.92
152322 11114/2013 4798577 AT&T ERV: 13- 10119/ .
523; 3 985 & S 09/20/113 - 10119113 $2,560.44 $2,576.30
11 7 RV: - 10191
1/14/2013 4804376 SERV: 09/20/13 - 10/19/13 $15.98
152258 117712013 604477 CONTROLWORKX LLC WATHER CHAMP OVERHAUL $2.530.67 $2,530.87
152276 11/7/2013 6925 JACKSON CONSTRUCTION REFUND # 16773 $2.500.00 $2,500.00
152341 11/14/2013 105054 ESA SEA LEVEL RISE PRESENTATION TO BOARD $2.460.00 $2,460.00
152299 11/7/2013 1546879004 SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY 9 PKS LAMP MINIATURE $42.05 $2,252.60
11/7/2013 1549755002 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS
$223.84
11/7/2013 1546879001 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS
$1,151,72
11/7/12013 1546879005 50 RIGID COND CLAMP W/NUT & BOLT ATTACHED $221.34
11/7/2013 1546879003 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS
$612.75
152313 11/14/2013 21882 ABACUS PRODUCTS INC CREDIT INVOICE 21756 - DUFFEL BAG DAMAGED $8.44 $2,231.83
1114/2013 22378 2,500 FISH ERASERS
3 $2,240.27
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013
Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt

152344 11/14/2013 91398437 H & E EQUIPMENT SERVICES INC REACH LIFT RENTAL 10/7/13 - 10/15/13 $2.208.71 $2,208.71
152283 11/712013 505427 MCMILLAN SECURITY SYSTEMS 2ND QTR ANNUAL SECURITY & CCTV SYS SUPP $2,153.50 $2,153.50
152374 11114/2013 33975 USA SCALES INC CALIBRATE TRUCK SCALE & TWO HOPPER SCALES $2.142.00 $2,142.00
152300 11/7/2013 5567024115 SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC 1 ST-H TRANSDUCER WITH 30M CABLE FOR LEVEL MEASUREMENTS $2,008.58 $2,098.58
152232 11712013 60388 3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC 4 PIPEPATCH KIT - WINTER $2,076.75 $2,076.75
152240 11/712013 887 ALLIED PACKING AND SUPPLY CO 6 013EC001-0, 1°ID X 240° OAL W 1° MAKE $1.338.20 $2,074.75

11/712013 37414 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS $736.55
152294 1rN3 7777 R & S ERECTION OF S ALAMEDA OPERATOR FOR ROLL UP DOOR AT AERATION ROOM $2,025.00 $2,025.00
152316 1114/2013 20131108 ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER UPPER HETCH HECTCHY SS REHABILITATION $2,000.00 $2,000.00
152361 11114/2013 131020 PROSAFE 20 HRS ENVIRONMENTAL/SAFETY CONSULTING SERVICES $2,000.00 $2,000.00
152239 11/7/2013 167985 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC 1ST QUARTER ENDORSEMENT $1,808.06 $1,808.08
152363 1171472013 916001870956 REPUBLIC SERVICES #3816 RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - OCT 2013 $1.776.91 $1,776.91
152292 1/7/2013 301134 PACHECO BROTHERS GARDENING INC LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES OCT 2013 $1.468.00 $1,468.00
152260 117712013 20131025.10 DALE HARDWARE INC 10/13 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS $1.383.50 $1,393.59
152333 1111472013 12773 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC UPGRADE CRYSTAL REPORTS SOFTWARE $1.225.00 $1,349.00

1114/2013 42427 1 PLC16 OCB SWITCH, PLC IMPRVMT PROJECT $124.00
152256 11/7/2013 28460 COLLICUTT ENERGY SERVICES INC 2 UEGO OXYGEN SENSORS $1.310.73 $1,310.73
152365 11/14/2013 2323801001 S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES $1.175.33 $1,291.62

11114/2013 2323801002 ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES $116.20
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/12013

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152286 11/7/2013 20131031 NAPA AUTO PARTS MONTHLY AUTOPARTS STMT - OCT 2013 $1.262.73 $1,262.73
152301 11/7/2013 5683148 SIGNET TESTING LABS INC I-580 AT SABERCAT RD SEWER REPLACEMENT $1.22425 $1,224.25
152331 11/14/2013 32395 CALCON SYSTEMS HEADWORKS PARSHAL FLUME CALIBRATION $1.150.00 $1,150.00
152253 11/7/2013 83974 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC PLC16 OCB SWITCH, PLC IMPRVMT PROJECT $1,063.25 $1,063.25
152376 11/14/2013 23054 WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH LLP LABOR & EMPLOYMENT LAW FEES $1.040.50 $1,040.50
152302 11/7/2013 3213336987 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL 10 PURELL SANITIZING WIPES $56.03 $1,030.65

11/7/2013 3213336983 12 CS PAPER TOWELS $355.28

11/7/2013 3213336984 2 CS PAPER TOWELS ECO GREEN MULTIFOLD $56.96

11/7/2013 3213336988 ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES - INVENTORY $471.98

11/7/2013 3213336985 ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES - INVENTORY $89.64
152321 11114/2013 456906 A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC OCT PEST CONTROL $1,005.00 $1,005.00
152259 11/7/2013 242235 CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD 2LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS $315.00 $980.00

11/7/2013 242238 : 5 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS $505.00

1712013 242147 6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS $160.00
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152267 11/7/2013 9253249248 GRAINGER INC 1 EA COMBINATION PADLOCK $11.87 $914.57
11/7/2013 9254776033 1 EA INDUSTRIAL BICYCLE, 26N, FRONT BASKET $371.37
11/7/2013 9254776041 1 EA CONTROL STATION , NEMA 4 $176.38
11/7/2013 9254722797 1 EA EMERGENCY LIGHT $216.81
11/7/2013 9253349238 1 EA MANUAL SWITCH $100.50
11/7/2013 9255462989 1 EA THREE-SOCKET TEE $17.75
11/7/2013 9256341224 . 1 EA LEVER SWITCH, WEATHERPROOF $10.60
152318 1114/2013 5085447 ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY 1 PARKING LOT LED LIGHT AR-LED-KIT3 $871.07 $871.07
152234 11/7/2013 9020855324 AIRGAS NCN 1 HDGR RTCHT ASSY ELITE $10.04 $843.66
11/7/2013 9020655505 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS sa23.72
152282 11/7/2013 64050107 MCMASTER SUPPLY INC 2 EA SEALED LEAD-ACID BATTERIES $105.51 $804.49
11/7/2013 63538272 1 EA STEEL WIRING TROUGH ENCLOSURE $165.17
17
11/7/2013 64019584 ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS $465.73
11/7/2013 64049764 2 EA STAINLESS STELL EYEBOLTS $48.06
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013
Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
162327 1114/2013 10000210 BLAISDELL'S ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES . $80.83 $803.90
11/14/2013 10001720 ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES $3447
11/14/2013 9999071 6 PK PAGE FLAGS $19.18
11/14/2013 10000770 1 BLACK TONER $134.67
11/14/2013 9995940 ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES $91.54
11/14/2013 9998070 ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES $352.21
11/14/2013 10000490 ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES $82.00
152268 11/7/2013 946206 GROENIGER AND COMPANY 1 EA LF 2 BRZ RED PRES BFP $496.80 $789.75
11/7/2013 939375 2 EA CHECK VALVE REP KITS $202.05
152270 1/7/2013 1404941 HANSON AGGREGATES INC 10.00 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A $746.66 $746.65
152244 1/7/2013  87896581210252013 AT&T SERV: 09/18/13 - 10/17/13 $871.55 $671.55
152277 11/7/2013 411020862 KELLY SERVICES INC TEMP LABOR-BECKER, AJ., WK END 10/13/13 $633.60 $633.60
152345 11/14/2013 1408345 HANSON AGGREGATES INC 8.25 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A $516.94 $616.94
152342 11/14/2013 118612 FASTENAL ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS $341.31 $611.41
11/14/2013 .
/2 117301 50 1/8" S/S STRAIGHT L $270.10
152337 11/14/2013 20131111 RICHARD CORTES EXP REIMB: PE LICENSE & ASCE/WEF MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS $808.00 $608.00
152334 11/14/2013 1080160 CELLOTAPE 2000 LABEL PAPER $608.74 $605.74
152359 11/14/2013 20131113 PETTY CASH PETTY CASH REPLENISHMENT $561.74 $581.74
152330 1114/2013 11202511 BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS  PLANT GROUNDWATER WELLS MONITORING $564.86 $564.86
Page 10 of 15

Page 143 of 164



Check No.
152247

152252
152263
152291
152295

152338

152348
152367

152356

152245
152347
152314
152298

152325

152324

152335

Date
11/7/2013

11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/7/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/7/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/7/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013
11/14/2013

11/14/2013

Invoice No.
2521737869

7069

7101

7104

7102

242341

242333

27118808001

20131106.2

65018562

64656563

205366

13234

9020980306

8200000006943

16282400

16308600

153454

1259805
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013

Vendor Description
BANK OF NEW YORK SEPTEMBER 2013 SERVICE FEE
JUSTIN CASH REFUND # 16705
E Z PLUMBING REFUND # 16771
LEQUN OU REFUND # 16769
RAPID (TRIPPLE A) PLUMBING REFUND # 16770
CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD 6 LAB SAMPLE ANLAYSIS

22 LAB SAMPLE ANLAYSIS

HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL BOBCAT RENTAL
SWRCB - CERTIFICATIONS GRADE V CERT EXAM-BRENNER
MCMASTER SUPPLY INC ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA GLASS OIL-LEVEL INDICATOR

AUTO BODY TOOLMART ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS
_ HAYWARD PIPE AND SUPPLY ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS
"AIRGAS NCN 1 CYL ARGON
RED WING SHOE STORE SAFETY SHOES - GALE & LUBINA
BECK'S SHOES SAFETY SHOES: D. PORT
SAFETY SHOES: G. STEVENS
BAY CENTRAL PRINTING 3,000 BUS CARDS - 6 CS EMPLOYEES
CHEMSEARCH 2 DZ ELECTRICAL MOTOR SOLVENT

Page 11 of 15

Invoice Amt

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$210.00

$290.00

$447.87

$440.00

$361.71

$72.11

$407.44

$383.75

$379.87

$370.00

$185.00

$176.02

$353.60

$350.08

Check Amt
$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$447.87

$440.00

$433.82

$407.44

$383.75

$379.87

$370.00

$361.02

$353.60

$350.08



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER
11/02/12013-11/15/2013
Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt
152254 11/7/2013 262775 CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH 25 KEY BLANKS $44.06 $340.45
1/7/2013 263217 1 KEY BLANK $1.80
/72013 262579 REKEY 5 PUMP STATIONS IN FREMONT & NEWARK $302.69
152349 111472013 600895189 HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $279.83 $348.13
11114/2013 600898303 ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $68.30
152323 11/14/2013 43993 BARNETT MEDICAL SERVICES LLC 80 LBS PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE REMOVAL $174.00 $348.00
11/14/2013 43432 80 LBS PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE REMOVAL $174.00
152233 11/7/2013 6358388 ABC IMAGING, INC. FOG POSTER 34335 $343.35
152368 11/14/2013  20131106.1 SWRCB - CERTIFICATIONS GRADE V CERT RENEW-LULLO $340.00 $340.00
152307 11/7/2013 9713591372 VERIZON WIRELESS WIRELESS SERV 09/21/13-10/20/13 $317.04 $317.04
152261 111712013 42954 DATCO NOV 2013 SERVICE FEE $300.30 $300.30
152350 1114/2013 997720131028 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - OCT 2013 Sto008 $296.68
152290 11/7/2013 30180952 OLDCASTLE ENCLOSURE SYSTEMS 2 EA MH VERTICAL 36 - 18IN STEPS $285.12 $285.12
152249 11/7/2013 9990960 BLAISDELL'S 2 PK 8 TAB INDEX $65.68 $280.94
11/7/2013 9991590 1 TONER - BLACK $172.78
1172013 9990260 1 CHAIRMAT $42.48
152275 1172013 511902 HULBERT LUMBER SUPPLY ASTD LUMBER SUPPLIES $18.61 $264.46
11/7/2013 511576 ASTD LUMBER SUPPLIES $245.55
152319 11/14/2013 641 ALLIED PACKING AND SUPPLY CO ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS $263.78 $263.78
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013
Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor Description Invoice Amt Check Amt

152255 11/7/2013 378575 CHEMETRICS INC 10 SAMPLING REFILL PKS s260.62 $262.62
152315 1114/2013 131001804 AIRTECH MECHANICAL INC SERVICE CALL: ADMIN BLDG, TSCS MANAGER OFFICE $262.50 $262.50
152373 11/14/2013 20131101 USA MOBILITY WIRELESS INC NOVEMBER 2013 PAGER SERVICE $261.68 $261.68
152269 11/7/2013 8527246 HACH COMPANY ASTD LABORATORY SAMPLING SUPPLIES s232.03 $232.93
152304 11/7/2013 20131106 SWRCB - CERTIFICATIONS GRADE Il CERT RENEW - SHENK $230.00 $230.00
152310 11712013 8055585379 VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC 1 MERCURIC NITRATE 0.0141N 1L $22 80 $222.57

11/7/2013 8055570919 2 PKS FILTERS PORTABLE GAS DETECTOR $190.07
152320 11/114/2013 279 ALLIED PACKING AND SUPPLY CO 30 GASKETS $186.92 $186.92
152352 11/14/2013 42080387 KELLY SERVICES INC TEMP LABOR-BECKER, AJ., WK END 10/20/13 $184.80 $184.80
152364 11/14/2013 225963 RKI INSTRUMENTS INC 2 0S-BM2 OXYGEN $180,68 $180.68
152303 11/7/2013 3213336986 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL 24 COFFEE CREAMERS & 2 CS LINER WASTE $166.13 $166.13
152288 11/7/2013 20131030 SHAWN NESGIS EXP REIMB: GIFT CARDS FOR INDIVID RECOG (LUBINA & NOEGEL) $150.00 $150.00
152385 11/14/2013 3782049 MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC 3 PRS OF BOOTS $136.34 $136.34
152326 1114/2013 20131107 JUDI BERZON EXP REIMB: TSCS WGM APPLICANT HOTEL/QAI SNACKS $124.67 $124.57
152243 11712013 4784775 AT&T SERV: 09/13/13 - 10/112/13 $94.29 $95.79

11/7/2013 4705793 SERV: 08/16/13 - 09/15/13 $1.50
152362 11/14/2013 58006 PURRFECT AUTO SERVICE SMOG INSPECTION $20.05 $89.85

1114/2013 57933 SMOG INSPECTION $29.95

11114/2013 57927 SMOG INSPECTION $20.95
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Check No.
152339

15231

152266

152354

152242

152346

152293

162371

152328

152284

162317

152264

162274

152272

162273

152236

162279

Date
11/14/2013

11772013

11/7/2013

11/14/2013

11/7/2013

11/14/2013

11/7/2013

11/7/2013

11/14/2013

11/14/2013

11/7/2013

11/14/2013

11/7/2013

117712013

11/7/2013

11/7/2013

11/7/12013

11/7/2013

Invoice No.

20131107

20131016

138974

20131111

70011058041

3G7890

57913

57905

9853423

20131023

90662485

1221

118597

5419952

13400

600889864

1218

20131106
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013

Vendor
CWEA-NRTC

WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH LLP
FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC
DAVID LIVINGSTON

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIE
HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

PURRFECT AUTO SERVICE

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE
BOTTOM LINE

METAL SUPERMARKETS
ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER
FASTENAL

HOSE & FITTINGS ETC
HAYWARD PIPE AND SUPPLY
HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO
ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE

Description
CERTIFICATE RENEWAL: J. SEO

BREAKFAST BRIEFING - A LOPEZ & MORRISON

SELF INKING STAMP: CONNECT/AIRTEST/ROCK BEDDING
EXP REIMB: LUNCH FOR BACWA INFO SHARE CMTE MTG
6 BELTS

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

SMOG INSPECTION

SMOG INSPECTION

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 10/19/13

SUBSCRIPTION RNWL - BOTTOMLUINE HEALTH

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS, AND ALUMINUM

9 ASSESSOR'S MAPS

8 /S HCS 5/8-11X5

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

6 ASSESSOR'S MAPS

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$87.00

$85.00

$84.98

$72.70

$64.82

$64.51

$29.95

$29.95

$51.52

$29.95

$28.69

$27.00

$26.33

$25.69

$25.68

$21.55

$18.00

REFRESHMENT FEE - SAN MATEO CTY EMP REL CONSORTIUM, ROJO
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$14.00

$87.00

$85.00

$84.98

$72.70

$64.82

$64.51

$59.90

$61.52

$29.95

$28.69

$27.00

$26.33

$25.69

$25.68

$21.55

$18.00

$14.00



Check No. Date Invoice No.
Invoices:
Credit Memos : 3
$0 - $1,000 : 151
$1,000 - $10,000 : 68
$10,000 - $100,000 : 16
Over'$100,000 : 4
Total: 242
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Vendor

-3,206.66
35,580.43
211,120.61
449,178.43
817,030.81
1,509,703.62

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER
11/02/2013-11/15/2013
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Description:

Checks:

$0 - $1,000 :
$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :
Total:

76
51

145

Invoice Amt Check Amt

25,887.33
155,478.61
403,870.29
924,467.39

1,500,703.62



DATE:

MEMO TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

November 25, 2013

Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

Richard Currie, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Coach

Agenda Item No. 17 — Meeting of November 25, 2013
Information Item: Holiday Pollution Prevention Message

Recommendation

Information only

Background

Directors

Pat D. Gacoscos
Tom Handley
Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Richard B. Currie

General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

This holiday season, the Environmental Compliance team is presenting a Pollution
Prevention message to Fremont, Newark and Union City residents, encouraging them
to properly dispose of or recycle their used cooking oil.

The Tri-City Voice newspaper will include an advertisement on Thanksgiving Turkey
Fryer oil recycling starting November 19" and running for two weeks. Residents will be
advised that they can dispose of all used cooking oil at no cost at the Republic
Services/Allied Waste location, at 42600 Boyce Road in Fremont (between Stevenson
and Auto Mall Parkway).

Attachments:

FOG Advertisement
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